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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

* This company carries on building materials business.

*
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

TURNOVER & PROFIT
FROM OPERATIONS

EARNINGS PER SHARE

SHAREHOLDERS  FUNDS RETURN ON
SHAREHOLDERS  FUNDS

 Turnover  Profit from Operations
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

It gives me great pleasure to report that Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) delivered impressive financial results in 2007. As
the Chairman of the Company, I hereby present to our
shareholders the annual report of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2007.

Results for the Financial Year Ended 31 March
2007

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the consolidated turnover
of the Group reached a record high of HK$1,178.9 million,
representing a remarkable increment of 34.5% over last year’s
figure of HK$876.6 million. Our construction business was
the main contributor to such an appreciable increase in
turnover. The profit attributable to shareholders rose to
HK$105.6 million (2006: HK$82.0 million), which was mainly
due to the gain arising from the disposal of the wholly owned
subsidiary holding Health Plus Centre and the 50% interest
in the Dongguan project.

The basic earnings per share for the year was HK23.8 cents,
compared to HK18.5 cents for the same period last year.

The Group witnessed a persistent improvement in net asset
value. As at 31 March 2007, the net asset value amounted to
HK$647.6 million (2006: HK$555.4 million), representing an
increase of 16.6% over last year. Net asset value per share
at 31 March 2007 was HK$1.46 (2006 : HK$1.25) per share.

Dividend

To reflect the Group’s commendable performance, the board
of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has recommended
the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5 cents per share for
the year ended 31 March 2007 (2006: HK1.5 cents per share)
to shareholders whose names appear on the Registers of
Members of the Company on 17 August 2007. This together
with the interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per share gives a
total of HK4 cents per share for the year (2006: HK2.5 cents
per share). The proposed dividend will be paid on 10
September 2007 following approval at the 2007 Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

Hanison Construction Holdings
Limited

1,178,900,000
876,600,000 34.5%

105,600,000
82,000,000

50%

23.8
18.5

647,600,000
555,400,000

16.6%
1.46 1.25

2.5
1.5

1.5 4
2.5
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Business Review

Hong Kong economy continued to sustain steady expansion.
For the year 2006, the GDP grew year-on-year by 6.8%.
Riding on the sustained economic growth over the past three
years, the labour market continued to improve across different
sectors. By the end of 2006, the overall unemployment rate
fell to a 6-year low of 4.4%.

In spite of the favourable macroeconomic environment, the
overall construction activity has slowed down. According to
the statist ics provided by the Census and Statistics
Department, the gross value of construction work performed
by main contractors at construction sites has decreased from
HK$48,691 million for the year 2005 to HK$41,712 million
for the year 2006. This situation has made the construction
industry even more competitive. Amidst this competitive
arena, our Construction Division was still able to withstand
the challenging business environment and generated
respectable turnover for the year under review. However, the
combined effects of the construction boom in Macau, the
weaker US dollar, the appreciation in RMB and the worldwide
rise in commodity price level have pushed up the basic
construction costs, leading to the tight gross profit margin
for construction projects.

Turnover from our building materials business is in line with
last year, although gross profit margin has declined in the
face of intense competition.

Leveraging on our experience and reputation in prestigious
buildings renovation, our Interior and Renovation Division has
recorded satisfactory growth in turnover during the year under
review.

For the Group’s property development business, we have
disposed of 50% interest in the Dongguan project and the
remaining residential unit of Golf Parkview during the year.
Our property investment business continued to generate a
steady stream of rental income to the Group. In December
2006, we disposed of the wholly owned subsidiary holding
Health Plus Centre. The gains arising from these disposal
transactions had been recorded in the accounts for the year,
and the sales proceeds were utilised for reducing the Group’s
bank loans, for working capital and for future investment
purposes.

6.8%

4.4%

48,691,000,000
41,712,000,000

50%
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The rise in retail rentals and the increasing competitive
pressure within the health products market have exacerbated
the health products retail business. Despite struggling along
in such a difficult environment to achieve a turnover close to
last year’s record, our Health Products Division still suffered
a loss of around HK$730,000 during the year.

Highlights of Corporate Activities

• In May 2006, the Group disposed of its property interest
at Kam Tsin Tsuen, Sheung Shui, New Territories for a
consideration of HK$15.7 million and recorded a gain
of HK$7.8 million.

• In November 2006, the Group disposed of its 50%
interest in two associated companies indirectly owning
two pieces of adjoining land in Dongguan, PRC. The
Group’s 50% share of the consideration is HK$45.7
million. A gain of HK$27.0 million is generated from the
transaction. Prior to completion of the disposal, the land
was held for jo int development with Cheval ier
International Holdings Limited.

• In December 2006, the Group disposed of the wholly
owned subsidiary holding Health Plus Centre, an
investment property located in Tai Wai at a consideration
of HK$180 million, realising a profit of HK$43.5 million.

• In January 2007, the Company entered into the
Construction and Renovation Services Framework
Agreement with HKR International Limited (“HKRI”)
setting out the general terms of the construction and
renovation transactions between the Group and the
HKRI Group for the 3 years ending 31 March 2010.

• In March 2007, the redevelopment of Shek Pai Wan
Estate Phase 2 was completed ahead of schedule,
representing a great leap forward for the Comprehensive
Redevelopment Programme of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority.

• Through the acquisition of Million Hope Industries
Limited in May 2007, the Group penetrates into the
aluminium windows and curtain wal l  business,
establishing a platform for future growth in the building
products sector.

730,000

•
15,700,000

7,800,000

•

50% 50%
45,700,000

27,000,000

•
180,000,000

43,500,000

•

•

•



2006 / 2007 

Page 9

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Future Directions and Prospects

The HKSAR government has forecasted a growth rate of 4.5
- 5.5% in real terms for the year 2007. In the Mainland China,
the steady export performance and impressive economic
expansion will continue to be the drivers of further growth of
the Hong Kong economy. In the global context, despite the
uncertainty stemming from the US economy, Europe, Japan
and other Asian markets all exhibit upbeat economic
sentiment, reflecting a positive economic outlook.

Going forward, the Group remains cautiously optimistic about
our core businesses in 2007. We have a record high amount
of contract on hand, particularly in the construction division,
however the gross margins in general decline. To sustain
growth, the Group will put continuous effort into cost control,
quality enhancement and efficiency improvement.

Over the years, the Group has acquired land and properties
at relatively low costs. We expect that these acquisitions will
bring promising returns to the Group in the years ahead. We
will continue to look for every suitable investment and
business opportunity to enhance shareholders’ value.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my gratitude
to our shareholders for their continuous support. I would also
take this opportunity to offer my sincere thanks to our staff
who contributed to the success of our business. Their
devotion is integral to the stability and prosperity of the Group.

Cha Mou Sing, Payson
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2007

4.5%-5.5%
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION

INTERIOR AND RENOVATION DIVISION BUILDING MATERIALS DIVISION
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Our Construction Division continued to make commendable
progress. It delivered a record turnover of HK$926.7 million
for the year ended 31 March 2007, surpassing the previous
year’s figure of HK$558.1 million by 66.0%. The division
completed the financial year with a forward order book of
HK$1,770.3 million (including contracts awarded to jointly
controlled entities).

926,700,000 558,100,000
66.0%

1,770,300,000

Construction of the residential development at 78 Mount Kellett Road

78

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION 
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Completion
Project Location Type date

1. Construction of Chianti Discovery Bay Residential April 2006

2. Construction of the residential development at The Peak Residential August 2006
78 Mount Kellett Road

78

3. Construction of The Chinese University of Homantin Institutional September 2006
Hong Kong — Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
Community College at 31 Wylie Road

31

4. Construction of La Rossa (note) Tung Chung Residential October 2006

5. Construction of canopy and the associated Chap Lap Kok Commercial November 2006
works at departure road, transition deck and
ground transportation centre at Hong Kong
International Airport

6. MGM Grand Macau Tower Concrete Works Macau Commercial December 2006

7. Completion of the redevelopment of Shek Pai Wan Residential March 2007
Shek Pai Wan Estate Phase 2

Note: The La Rossa residential project at Tung Chung was a joint
venture project, in which the Group has 50% interest.

Major projects completed during the year

The major contracts completed during the year are set out
below:—

50%



2006 / 2007 

Page 13

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Major projects awarded

The significant contracts awarded during the year and
subsequent to the year end are tabulated below:—

Project Location Type

1. Construction of a primary cum secondary school for the Discovery Bay Institutional
English Schools Foundation

2. Completion of the redevelopment of Shek Pai Wan Residential
Shek Pai Wan Estate Phase 2

3. Addition and alteration works for the proposed Hong Kong Wong Chuk Hang Institutional
Anti-Cancer Society Jockey Club Cancer Rehabilitation
Centre at 30 Nam Long Shan Road

30

4. Construction of proposed composite building at North Point Residential
172-186 Java Road

172-186

5. Redevelopment of Sau Mau Ping Estate Phase 14 Sau Mau Ping Residential

6. Design and construction of the proposed office/commercial Tsimshatsui Commercial
development at 33 Cameron Road

33

7. Construction of Choi Wan Road development Choi Wan and Residential and
Site 2 Phase 1 and Sau Mau Ping Phase 12 Sau Mau Ping recreational
(District Open Space)

2

8. Construction of a primary school at the junction of Tsuen Wan Institutional
Texaco Road and Castle Peak Road

9. Construction of the residential development at 35 Mount Kellett Road The Peak Residential
35
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Progress of current contracts

Structural alteration to the proposed Hong Kong Anti-Cancer
Society Jockey Club Cancer Rehabilitation Centre has been
completed, and renovation work is now progressing steadily.
Also the structural metal roof and architectural works for the
primary cum secondary school of the English Schools
Foundation in Discovery Bay are under construction.
Furthermore, the architectural works for the residential
development at Areas 4C and 38A in Shatin Phase 3 is in
progress. In addition, the reinforced concrete structural work
for the residential buildings at 172-186 Java Road and Sau
Mau Ping Estate Phase 14 is progressing as well. The
construction of two residential blocks for the Hong Hong
Housing Authority at Choi Wan Road development Site 2
Phase 1 has been commenced and soil investigation for piling
work for construction of the primary school at the junction of
Texaco Road and Castle Peak Road in Tsuen Wan is
progressing smoothly.

4C 38A

172 186
2

Construction of residential

development at Shatin Areas

4C & 38A Phase 3

4C 38A 
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Foundation works

During the year, the division established Hanison Foundation
Limited to further expand its foundation work business. The
following foundation projects have commenced: (1) the
proposed office/commercial building at 33 Cameron Road in
Tsimshatsui, (2) the residential development at 1 & 1E La Salle
Road in Kowloon Tong (a joint venture development of the
Group with NWS Holdings Limited) and (3) the Group’s
development at the junction of 4 College Road and 21 Sau
Chuk Yuen Road in Kowloon Tong. In tandem with providing
foundation support to the Group’s construction projects, this
subsidiary is actively procuring external foundation projects.

Safety, Quality and the Environment

The Group maintains the highest level of awareness and
practical implementation of safety and environmental
standards. Our committees for safety,  qual i ty  and
environmental matters hold regular meetings and undertake
annual review of the Safety Management System and
Integrated (Quality and Environmental) Management Systems,
aiming to achieve sustainable construction and reduce
environmental impact. This ongoing monitoring mechanism
ensures we are compliant with the relevant legislations and
make continuous improvement.

(1) 33
 (2) 1 1E

 (3) 4
21

Construction of La Rossa

in Tung Chung

Completion of the redevelopment of

Shek Pai Wan Estate Phase 2
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The promotion of a safety culture within the Group enabled
the achievement of an improving accident rate. As compared
with the accident rate of 18/1,000 workers for the year 2005,
the year 2006 recorded a further improved rate of 13.3/1,000
workers.

Our insurmountable devotion to safety, quality and the
environment have resulted in the winning of the following
awards and commendations:—

— Gold Award for Safety Team for Safety Award Scheme
for the Construction Industry (2006/2007) (Residential
development at Areas 4C and 38A in Shatin Phase 3
for the Hong Kong Housing Authority)

— Merit Award for Building Sites (Private Sector) for Safety
Award Scheme for the Construction Industry (2006/
2007) (Primary cum secondary school for the English
Schools Foundation in Discovery Bay)

18/1,000
13.3/1,000

4C 38A

Construction of a primary cum secondary school for the English Schools Foundation in Discovery Bay
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— Merit Award for Outstanding Contractor (Building
Category) for the 2006 Qual i ty Publ ic Housing
Construction & Maintenance Award

— Certificate of Appreciation for providing workplace
attachment training under the Youth Pre-employment
Training Programme 2005/2006

— Commendation by the Hong Kong Housing Authority
on advance completion of the redevelopment of Shek
Pai Wan Estate Phase 2

— Certif icate of Appreciation in recognit ion of the
professional and commendable performance in the
process of tendering the Hong Kong Housing Authority’s
completion contracts

— Champion of the Occupational Safety & Health Council
Shield (Unions Category) at the 2006 Safety Quiz jointly
organized by the Occupational Safety and Health
Council and the Labour Department

Outlook

The division’s growth has been made against a background
of reduction in Hong Kong’s overall construction activity at
sites during the past few years. Imbued with a strong sense
of commitment and a persistent drive for excellence, the
Group has been delivering quality construction work and
secured acclamations from many clients. Leveraging on our
expertise, highly efficient and dedicated management team,
we endeavour to continue our efforts to further enhance our
building quality and efficiency, and to excel our site safety
and environmental protection.

Looking forward, it is anticipated that the building construction
business will continue to be highly competitive and gross
margin will be tight. The management will make every effort
to contain costs and to improve our effectiveness. With the
record high amount of contract work on hand, and our
reputation in the building construction market, we are
convinced that the Construction Division will continue to bring
promising results to the Group.



HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2006 / 2007

Page 18

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Exterior addition & alteration and

interior design & renovation of

a residential property at

6 Fei Ngo Shan Road

6

Renovation work for Tavistock at

10 Tregunter Path

10

INTERIOR AND RENOVATION DIVISION

The Interior and Renovation Division has achieved an
encouraging growth in turnover for the year under review.
During the year, the turnover has risen to HK$108.2 million,
an increase of 18.8% when compared with the turnover of
HK$91.1 million for the corresponding period last year.

Major projects undertaken and awarded

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the division has
strengthened its presence in the high-end residential sector
maintenance and renovation work. A number of prestigious

1 0 8 , 2 0 0 , 0 0 0
91,100,000 18.8%
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building renovation work were undertaken during the year.
They included:—

(1) Renovation and repairing work for Villa Monte Rosa at
41A Stubbs Road

(2) Room conversion work for Harbour Plaza Metropolis
Hotel in Hung Hom

(3) Repairing and renovation work for Queen’s Garden at
9 Old Peak Road

(4) Exterior addition & alteration and interior design &
renovation of a residential property at 6 Fei Ngo Shan
Road

(5) External wall renovation work at C C Wu Building in
Wanchai

During the year, the division secured HK$221.5 million worth
of new orders which have contributed to a significant increase
in its forward order book. Major contracts clinched during
the year included the renovation work for Tavistock at 10
Tregunter Path in the Mid-levels, and the abovementioned
project work for Queen’s Garden, the residential property at
6 Fei Ngo Shan Road and C C Wu Building. Subsequent to
the year end, the division also secured the repair and
renovation work for the clubhouse, lift lobby, front entrance
and podium garden for Queen’s Garden.

As at 31 March 2007, the total amount of contracts on hand
stood at HK$197.6 million.

Outlook

The government has commenced the legislative drafting
exercise for the “Mandatory Building Inspection Scheme” and
the “Mandatory Window Inspection Scheme”, which require
inspection and rectification of (i) private buildings aged 30
years or above and (ii) windows for private buildings aged 10
years or above respectively. The introduction of the schemes
will heighten general public awareness over the importance
of building safety and maintenance and provide ample
opportunity for the division to help building owners in different
areas, such as providing advice on compliance issues,
carrying out building and window inspection, and performance
of rectification works.

(1) 41A

(2)

(3) 9

(4) 6

(5)

221,500,000

10
6

197,600,000

(i) 30
(ii) 10
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Repairing and renovation

work for Queen’s Garden

In response to the changing market dynamics, the division
has established a technology platform for the Group’s
continuous growth. The deployment of mast climbing working
platforms has greatly enhanced work efficiency and workplace
safety. In addition, other innovative and environmentally
friendly techniques, such as hydraulic clamp concrete
crushing machines, were applied and were widely endorsed
by our clients.

During the year, the division has made significant progress in
the provision of interior and renovation services for luxury
residential buildings. The quality and standard of our works
have been highly recognised, and the management is
confident that we are making strides in the right direction.
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BUILDING MATERIALS DIVISION 

Supply and installation

of kitchen cabinets for

Kingsville Phase 2 in Macau

The turnover for this division for the year ended 31 March
2007 was HK$107.6 million, which is a slight decrease when
compared with the turnover of HK$115.7 million for the
corresponding period last year.

Trigon Building Materials Limited (“Trigon HK”) and
Trigon Interior Fitting-Out Works (Macau) Limited
(“Trigon Macau”)

Performance of Trigon HK has been affected by the reduction
in construction work and sharp fall in the number of newly
completed residential flats. According to the statistics
provided by the Census and Statistics Department, (i) the
gross value of construction work performed by main
contractors at construction sites has decreased from
HK$48,691 million for the year 2005 to HK$41,712 million
for the year 2006, (ii) there is a sharp fall in the number of
newly completed residential flats from 42,012 million units
for the year 2005 to 21,009 million units for the year 2006.
Keen competition in the building materials business is
inevitable.

During the previous year, the Group has taken advantage of
the booming Macau economy to set up Trigon Macau to
develop our building materials business in Macau. Over the
past few months, we evidenced promising performance from
our Macau operation.

107,600,000
115,700,000

(i)
48,691,000,000

41,712,000,000 (ii)

42,012,000,000
21,009,000,000
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Major projects undertaken and awarded

During the year ended 31 March 2007, Trigon HK and Trigon
Macau have undertaken the following major projects for the
supply and installation of building materials, some of which
were awarded during the year under review:—

(1) Bel-Air on the Peak at Cyberport — False ceiling

(2) Canaryside in Lei Yue Mun — Timber flooring (awarded
during the year)

(3) Centre Place at 1 High Street in the Mid-levels —
Polyboard and engineering flooring

(4) Chianti in Discovery Bay — Kitchen cabinets and timber
flooring

(5) CUHK-TWGHs Community College at 31 Wylie Road —
False ceiling

(6) Harbourview Horizon at Hung Hom Bay — False ceiling
and kitchen cabinets

(7) La Rossa in Tung Chung — False ceiling

(8) Le Point in Tiu Keng Leng — Kitchen cabinets (awarded
during the year)

(9) Mount Beacon in Kowloon Tong — False ceiling

(10) Grand Lisboa Hotel in Macau — False ceiling (awarded
during the year)

(11) Venetian Hotel Resort Development in Macau — False
ceiling (awarded during the year)

(12) Kingsville Phase 2 in Macau — Kitchen cabinets
(awarded during the year)

Trigon HK and Trigon Macau have been actively tendering
for project work. In addition to the abovementioned projects,
the major supply and installation contracts awarded during
the year ended 31 March 2007 are as follows:—

(1)   

(2)   

(3) 1   

(4)   

(5) 31   
  

(6)   

(7)   

(8)   

(9)   

(10)   

(11)   

(12)   
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Supply and installation of false

ceiling at Venetian Hotel Resort

Development in Macau

(1) The Vineyard at Ngau Tam Mei in Yuen Long — Timber
flooring

(2) Residential building at 172-186 Java Road in North
Point — Flooring

(3) Queen’s Garden at 9 Old Peak Road — Self-cleaning
“Hydrotect” external wall facing tiles (supply only)

As at 31 March 2007, the aggregate amount of contracts on
hand for Trigon HK and Trigon Macau was HK$72.2 million,
mainly including contracts for the supply and installation of
kitchen cabinets, timber flooring and false ceiling.

Outlook

Looking forward, keen competition in the building materials
industry is expected to cont inue. To mainta in our
competitiveness, Trigon HK and Trigon Macau will keep sourcing
products from quality manufacturers and securing distributorship
of innovative products from world renowned suppliers in order
to expand our product and client base. Our commitment in
providing quality products are persistent and much of our
marketing efforts will remain focused on this strategy.

Trigon HK and Trigon Macau has opened up further room for
development through its participation in the thriving Macau
market. The management will seize every opportunity to
expand businesses of Trigon HK and Trigon Macau and we
hope a breakthrough will occur following our persistent efforts.

(1)   

(2) 172 186   

(3) 9   

72,200,000
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Supply of pipes and fittings

Tai Kee Pipes Limited (“Tai Kee”)

Metal price soared in the first half of the financial year and
continued its upward trend after a slight fall during the mid-year.
In such a volatile situation, Tai Kee still made good progress and
recorded a promising result for the year under review.

Major projects undertaken

Tai Kee has a rapidly growing order book, as evidenced by
the following contracts for supply of piping products and
fittings secured during the year:—

(1) MGM Grand Macau in Macau — Copper tubes, black
steel pipes, galvanized iron pipes and fittings

(2) Community hall at Discovery Bay North Development-
Polyethylene pipes and fittings

(1)   

(2)   
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(3) Residential development at Areas 4C and 38A in Shatin
Phase 3 and residential redevelopment at Upper Ngau
Tau Kok Estate — Copper tubes

(4) The teaching hotel for the Chinese University of Hong
Kong — Copper tubes and fittings

(5) A hotel development in Tsim Sha Tsui — Copper tubes
and fittings

(6) Vision City in Tsuen Wan — Galvanized iron pipes

(7) Renovation work at various MTR stations — Special
coated galvanized iron pipes and fittings

(8) Hong Kong Shaolin Martial Art Institute — Galvanized
iron pipes

(9) Venetian Hotel Resort Development in Macau —
Polyethylene pipes and fittings

Outlook

Blooming in the Macau construction market as well as the
global rally in copper, steel and zinc price induce the advance
buying of the relevant building materials from our suppliers,
which in turn stimulate the demand and prices for piping
materials and related fittings. Under such condition, Tai Kee
is expected to operate under a very competitive environment
in the coming year.

Despite the tough competition, Polyethylene (PE) pipe trading
business is progressing well. This type of piping product is
accepted for use by many private clients and government
departments (including the Architectural Services Department,
Drainage Services Department, Highways Department and
Water Supplies Department). With its flexible, excellent
chemical resistant, long-life, light-weight and environmentally
friendly characteristics, it is expected that the PE pipe
business will become more and more important for Tai Kee
in the years to come.

(3) 4C 38A
  

(4)   

(5)   

(6)   

(7)   

(8)   

(9)   

PE

PE
PE
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Tai Kee will continue to source innovative products to trade
alongside the traditional metal piping products and fittings,
with an aim to further widen our product range. We will also
focus on sourcing quality products with more affordable prices
from the Mainland China in order to maintain our competitive
edge. The management is confident that Tai Kee will grow
from strength to strength.

Million Hope Industries Limited (“Million Hope”)

In May 2007, the Group successfully acquired Million Hope
Industries Limited, a manufacturer and trader of aluminium
windows and curtain walls in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
This company has been awarded the ISO 9001 : 2000
certification by the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency,
and is one of the authorized manufacturers of the famous
brand “Schüco”. Since its establishment in 1990, Million Hope
is an active participant in the industry, and has been involved
in the design, supply and installation of aluminium windows
and curtain walls for many prestigious clients.

The acquisition represents our first move in these types of
building products and provides a synergistic complement to
our existing building materials business.

ISO  9001 2000
Schüco
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Proposed residential

development

at the junction of

4 College Road and

21 Sau Chuk Yuen Road

in Kowloon Tong

4

21

Proposed joint residential development at

1 & 1E La Salle Road in Kowloon Tong

1 1E

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the division sold the
remaining one residential unit of the Golf Parkview. Other
development projects are either in progress or have not
commenced yet. The turnover for this division has decreased
to HK$4.8 million for the year (2006: HK$84.2 million).

During the year, the Group disposed of its 50% interest in two
associated companies indirectly holding two pieces of adjoining
land in Dongguan, PRC, sharing sales proceeds for an amount
of HK$45.7 million and realizing a gain of approximately HK$27.0
million which was recorded as other operating income for the
division in the financial year. The land was originally held for joint
development with Chevalier International Holdings Limited into
a commercial/office complex.

Continuing revival of the Hong Kong economy with
higher GDP growth, declining unemployment rates and
rising personal income over the past few years have

fue l led the res ident ia l
property market. After the
successful launch of the
Golf Parkview, the Group’s
property  deve lopment
activities continue apace
into the year commencing
1 April 2007. Foundation
work for the two property
development projects in
Kowloon Tong: (1) the
Group’s development at
the junction of 4 College
Road and 21 Sau Chuk

4,800,000
84,200,000

50%
45,700,000

27,000,000

(1) 4 21
(2)
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Yuen Road and (2) joint development with NWS Holdings
Limited at 1 & 1E La Salle Road are under preparation. These
developments will feature low-rise luxurious units, with
exquisite design and unparalleled standard of living. Superbly
located in the traditionally prestigious Kowloon Tong district
and with excellent schooling network, the completed
properties will offer both tranquility and convenience. Both
developments are targeted for completion towards the end
of 2008 or early 2009.

The Group has other land lots located in the rapidly developing
suburban areas. The development proposal for the Group’s
residential development project with Sun Hung Kai Properties
Limited at So Kwun Wat in Tuen Mun has been submitted to
the Town Planning Board for consideration. For the Group’s
residential development at D.D.129, Lau Fau Shan in Yuen
Long with a site area of 815,886 square feet, development
planning is in progress.

Outlook

The rebound of the economy and improved household wealth
and affordability have translated into desire for premium quality
residences. The Group maintained its view that high-end
residential properties will continue its healthy trend. At the
same time, while remaining cautious over land investment in
such a highly priced, supply-constrained land market, the
Group will continue to capture every opportunity to replenish
our land bank with land of development potential, aiming to
enhance revenue growth at good margins.

1 1E

129 815,886
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT DIVISION

Despite reduced rental receipts following the disposal of
Health Plus Centre during the year as mentioned below, the
division managed to secure renewals and new leases during
the year with satisfactory rental rate growth, bringing a 2.3%
increase in turnover to HK$17.7 million for the year ended 31
March 2007 (2006: HK$17.3 million). As in previous years,
promising occupancy rates were recorded for the Group’s
investment properties, with an average occupancy rate of
75% as at 31 March 2007.

In December 2006, the Group disposed of the wholly owned
subsidiary holding Health Plus Centre in Tai Wai at a
consideration of HK$180 million. A gain on disposal of
approximately HK$43.5 million was generated and recorded
as other operating income for the division. When the property
was acquired by the Group in January 2004, the occupancy
rate was only 37.4%. Attributable to our effort in carrying out
extensive renovation work to the building and in actively
marketing the property, the property was almost fully let (98%
occupancy) at the time of disposal.

During the year, the Group acquired additional leasing space
at Shatin Industrial Centre in Shatin, some units at Kin Wing
Industrial Building in Tuen Mun, and a unit at 5 & 5A La Salle
Road in Kowloon Tong for investment purposes for a total
consideration of approximately HK$26.8 million. Together with
the properties at 23-25 Mei Wan Street in Tsuen Wan, 95
Bedford Road in Tai Kok Tsui, 31 Wing Wo Street in Sheung
Wan and various land lots at D.D.76 Ping Che in Fanling and
D.D. 128 Deep Bay Road in Yuen Long, the division constantly
produces a stable stream of income for the Group.

2.3% 17,700,000
17,300,000

75%

180,000,000 43,500,000

37.4%

98%

5 5A
26,800,000

23-25 95
31 76

128
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Shatin Industrial Centre

Outlook

We are determined to proactively enhance the value of our
investment properties through renovations and upgrades of
different scales to improve rental yields and property value.
Flexible leasing packages will be deployed to attract quality
tenants to further improve our tenant mix. Riding on the
current favourable property market conditions, our investment
propert ies wil l  stand to benefit from potential asset
appreciation, and we will enlarge our investment property
portfolio when opportunities arise.
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PROPERTY AGENCY AND MANAGEMENT DIVISION

This division provides premium property and project
management, rental collection and leasing agency services
to 8 Hart Avenue in Tsimshatsui, Golf Parkview in Sheung
Shui and Health Plus Centre in Tai Wai. After the disposal of
Health Plus Centre by the Group in December 2006, the
contract for the management of this property was ended with
effect from 15 March 2007.

Outlook

Competition in the property agency and management
business remain fierce and profit margin from the service work
is tight. Given our knowledge and experience gained from
our management of quality commercial/residential buildings,
we will make every effort to augment our client base by
enhancing our service platform so as to tailor to the ever
increasing standards and expectations of our tenants.

8
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Mr Albert Au promoting Lingzhi Master productsHealth Plus Shop at CDW Place in Tsuen Wan

HEALTH PRODUCTS DIVISION

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Health Products
Division recorded a turnover of HK$62.8 million (2006:
HK$61.7 million), and a loss of HK$730,000 (2006: profit of
HK$962,000), mainly due to margin compression arising from
intense price competition and increase in rental charges for
the retail shops.

Care & Health Limited (“Care & Health”) is principally engaged
in the trading of cancer adjuvant therapy products, the Lingzhi
Master series. It is also involved in the sales of other health
products, such as Metro Chinese Medicine Series, Premium
Grade Wild Cordyceps Liquid, Natural Pharm Saw Palmetto
and new product line Tea Master. As at 31 March 2007, there
were 2 shops, 2 promotion counters and 2 clubhouses in
operation.

Healthcorp Trading Limited and Retai lcorp Limited
(“Retailcorp”) carry on wholesale and retail chain store
businesses respectively, with Retailcorp operating the chain
store business under the trade name of Health Plus. The
Group’s own developed product lines include Natural Extracts,

62,800,000
61,700,000 730,000

962,000



2006 / 2007 

Page 33

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Bu Yick Fong Chinese herbal products, Healthway,
HealthMate and the newly launched Organic Plus. By the end
of March 2007, there were 21 Health Plus shops in operation.

Faced with a severely competitive situation, the division
continued to strengthen its brand-building efforts and refine
its marketing strategy and contents in that direction. It
participated in various road show activities, promotional
events and exhibitions, such as the Food Expo in August
2006 and Hong Kong Brands & Products Expo in December
2006 to enhance brand image. To commemorate the 15th
anniversary of Health Plus, Retailcorp also organised a series
of celebration activities.

The Group also prides itself as a socially responsible corporate
citizen. Care & Health and Retailcorp received the honour
“Caring Company” from the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for the 3rd and 2nd consecutive year respectively.
These awards show that our continuous contributions
towards the community have been well recognised.

Subsequent to the year end, we are extremely delighted to
have the celebrity, Mr. Albert Au, to become the promotional
ambassador for our Lingzhi Master series products. The
charity event “Albert Au 30th Anniversary Concert” sponsored
by Care & Health was an overwhelming success and helped
to raise funds for the Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society for the
construction of the Cancer Rehabilitation Centre in Wong
Chuk Hang.

Outlook

Although the economy of Hong Kong is healthy and is
expected to continue growing steadily in the year 2007,
market competition for health products speciality chains
remains severe. Retailers have been facing rising pressure
from tight margins, escalating rental rates and operating costs.
To survive in such a difficult circumstance, the division is
actively developing and marketing private-label products so
as to boost up sales and improve the gross margin. While
the management will make every effort to improve the
operations and to control the costs, we will cautiously assess
the viability of the business.

30
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Summary of Results

The profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31
March 2007 was HK$105.6 million or HK23.8 cents per share,
which has increased by 28.8% compared to profit attributable
to shareholders of HK$82.0 million or HK18.5 cents per share
for the last year. The main profit contributors were the gain
arising from the disposal of the wholly owned subsidiary
holding Health Plus Centre and the 50% interest in the
Dongguan project.

Group Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are regularly
reviewed.

For day-to-day liquidity management and to maintain flexibility
in funding, the Group has access to banking facilities with an
aggregate amount of HK$468.5 million (HK$63.5 million was
secured by first charges over certain land and buildings and
investment properties of the Group), of which HK$247.1
million loans have been drawn down and approximately
HK$150.8 million has been utilised mainly for the issuance of
letters of credit and performance bonds as at 31 March 2007.
The bank loans under these banking facilities bear interests
at prevailing market interest rates.

The Group follows a prudent policy in managing its cash
balance, and endeavours to maintain its sound cash
generating capability, its ability to take on investments and
acquisition projects, in order to enhance shareholder wealth.
The total cash and bank balances of the Group have increased
by HK$188.6 million to HK$258.5 million as at 31 March 2007,
and accounted for 26.1% of the current assets (2006: 10.6%).
The net increase was mainly due to the sales proceeds
received from the disposal of the wholly owned subsidiary
holding Health Plus Centre and the 50% interest in the
Dongguan project and the receipts from construction and
renovation work. Subsequent to the year end, part of these
funds were uti l ised in paying land premiums for our
development project at the junction of 4 College Road and
21 Sau Chuk Yuen Road and a joint development project at
1 & 1E La Salle Road; for acquisition of investment properties,
construction plant and equipment, and an aluminium window
company Mil l ion Hope Industries Limited; for partial
repayment of bank loans; and for working capital of the
construction projects.

105,600,000 23.8
82,000,000

18.5 28.8%

50%

468,500,000
63,500,000

2 4 7 , 1 0 0 , 0 0 0
150,800,000

1 8 8 , 6 0 0 , 0 0 0
258,500,000 26.1%

10.6%
50%

4 21
1 1E
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The Group has maintained a healthy balance sheet with net
bank balances and cash (total bank balances and cash less
total bank borrowings) of HK$11.4 mill ion (2006 : net
borrowings of HK$101.1 million) as at 31 March 2007.
Accordingly, the gearing ratio of the Group, calculated on
the basis of the Group’s net borrowings to shareholders’
funds, was 0% (2006 : 18.2%). The net current assets have
increased by HK$162.0 million to HK$405.1 million as at the
year-end date and the current ratio (current assets divided
by current liabilities) was 1.69 times (2006 : 1.58 times).

With its cash holdings, steady cash inflow from its operations,
together with available banking facilities, the Group’s liquidity
position will remain healthy in the coming year, with sufficient
financial resources to meet its obligations, operation and
future development requirements.

Treasury Policy

The aim of the Group’s treasury policy is to minimise its
exposure to fluctuations in the exchange rate and not to
engage in any highly leveraged or speculative derivative
products. Treasury transactions unrelated to underlying
financial exposure are not undertaken. Foreign currency
exposures of the Group arise mainly from the purchase of
goods. The Group will determine if any hedging is required,
on an individual basis, depending upon the size and nature
of the exposure, and the prevailing market circumstances.

In order to enhance the deployment of internal funds with
maximum benefit, to achieve better risk control, and to
minimise cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are
centralised and scrutinised by the top management.

The surplus cash is generally placed in short-term bank
deposits with reputable financial institutions. Most of these
deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Most of the
income, expenses, assets and liabilities of the Group are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group therefore will
not have any significant exposure to gains or losses arising
from the movement of foreign currency exchange rate against
Hong Kong dollar.

11,400,000
101,100,000

0 %
18.2%

162,000,000
405,100,000

1.69
1.58
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Shareholders’ Funds

At the year-end date, shareholders’ funds of the Group were
HK$647.6 million including reserves of HK$603.3 million, an
increase of HK$92.2 million from HK$555.4 million at 31
March 2006. On that basis, the consolidated net asset value
of the Group as at 31 March 2007 was HK$1.46 per share,
compared to the consolidated net asset value of HK$1.25
per share at 31 March 2006. Increase in shareholders’ funds
was mainly attributable to profits retained after the payments
of dividends.

Major Acquisitions

During the year under review, the Group purchased the
following properties from independent third parties for
investment purposes:

(1) Rooms 204-206 and 2 carparking spaces, Kin Wing
Industrial Building, Tuen Mun, New Territories at a
consideration of approximately HK$1.9 million.

(2) Workshop 8, 2/F, Block B and a carparking space,
Shatin Industrial Centre, 5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin,
New Territories at a consideration of HK$3.0 million.

(3) Workshop 7, 1/F, Block A and a carparking space,
Shatin Industrial Centre, 5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin,
New Territories at a consideration of approximately
HK$2.4 million.

(4) Workshop 5, G/F, Block A and a carparking space,
Shatin Industrial Centre, 5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin,
New Territories at a consideration of HK$12.0 million.

(5) Southern half portion of ground floor, 5 & 5A La Salle
Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon at a consideration of
HK$7.5 million.

Subsequent to the year end, in May 2007, the Group acquired
Million Hope Industries Limited which carries on aluminium
windows and curtain wall business at an acquisition cost of
approximately HK$3.4 million.

647,600,000
603,300,000

555,400,000
92,200,000

1.46
1.25

(1) 204-206
1,900,000

(2) 5 7 B 2
8

3,000,000

(3) 5 7 A 1
7

2,400,000

(4) 5 7 A
5

12,000,000
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Capital Structure

The Group intends to keep an appropriate mix of equity and
debt to ensure an efficient capital structure over time. During
the year under review, the Group has borrowed Hong Kong
dollar loans amounting to HK$247.1 million from the banks
(at 31 March 2006: HK$170.9 million). The borrowings have
been used as general working capital and for refinancing the
acquisition of properties for investment purposes. The
maturity profile of the loans spread over a period of five years
with HK$185.6 million repayable within the first year, HK$20.7
million repayable within the second year and HK$40.8 million
within the third to fifth years. Interest is based on HIBOR plus
a competitive margin.

Collateral

As at 31 March 2007, certain land and buildings and
investment properties of the Group, at the carrying value of
approximately HK$116.5 million (at 31 March 2006: HK$218.8
million), were pledged to the banks to secure the Hong Kong
dollar loans of HK$63.5 million (at 31 March 2006 : HK$94.9
million).

Contingent Liabilities

Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 36 of
the consolidated financial statements.

Capital Commitments

Details of the capital commitments are set out in note 37 of
the consolidated financial statements.

Post Balance Sheet Event

Details of the post balance sheet event are set out in note 41
of the consolidated financial statements.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The Group is implementing a manpower policy that aims to
maximise the output of existing staff resources in order to
achieve productivity gains. We believe that through improving
our staff’s job-related competencies, our overall operational
efficiency can be improved without the need for substantial
increase in headcount.

247,100,000
170,900,000

185,600,000
20,700,000

40,800,000

116,500,000
218,800,000

63,500,000
94,900,000
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The number of full time employees of the Group, excluding
its jointly controlled entities, was over 700 as at 31 March
2007. In addition to salary payments, other benefits include
provident fund schemes, discretionary bonuses, on-the-job
training, education sponsorship subsidies, a medical
insurance scheme, a group life and personal accident
insurance scheme.

Employees and directors are remunerated according to
individual and the Group’s performance, industry trends,
prevailing market conditions, the nature of the job and value
creation. The Group recruits and promotes individuals based
on their development potential, merits and competencies, and
ensures that their remuneration packages are at a reasonable
market level. All directors, full time employees and consultants
of the Group are entitled to participate in the share option
scheme of the Company. The principal terms of the share
option scheme are summarised in the Report of the Directors.
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Good corporate governance practices are crucial to
enhancing shareholder value. With this in mind, the Directors
of the Company are keen on maintaining high standards of
corporate governance. This is reflected in terms of a quality
Board of Directors and the emphasis on transparency and
accountability. Throughout the year ended 31 March 2007,
the Company has complied with all the Code Provisions of
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) as set out in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”), except for the deviations
set out below in respect of which remedial steps for
compliance have been taken or considered reasons are given
below.

The Company acknowledges the important role of its Board
of Directors (“Board”) in providing effective leadership and
direct ion to the Group’s businesses, and ensur ing
transparency and accountability of business operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of
the Company are summarised as follows:

1. The Board

1.1 The Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, and assumes responsibil ity for
strategy formulation, corporate governance and
performance monitoring. It develops and reviews
the Group’s strategies and policies, formulates
business plans and evaluates performance of the
operating divisions against agreed budgets and
targets through regular discussion on key and
appropriate issues in a timely manner. It also
exercises a number of reserved powers, including:
approval of annual and interim results and
significant changes in accounting policy or capital
structure, internal control system, material
transactions (in particular those which may involve
conflict of interests), major capital projects, setting
Group remuneration policy, dividend policy,
appointment of  Di rectors,  superv is ion of
management and other significant financial and
operational matters.

1.

1.1
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The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the
Managing Director and the senior management,
who fulfill their duties within their scope of authority
and responsibility. Divisional heads are responsible
for different aspects of the businesses. Major
functions delegated to management include
preparat ion of annual and inter im results,
execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of an
adequate internal control system and compliance
with the relevant statutory requirements.

All Directors are kept informed of major changes
that may affect the Group’s businesses on a timely
basis, and can avail themselves of the advice and
services of the Company Secretary so that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed. Each Director can have recourse to
independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company’s expense, upon
making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate
activities.

1.2 Board Composition

The composit ion of the Board ref lects the
necessary balance of skil ls and experience
desirable for effective leadership of the Company
and independence in decision making. The
b iograph ies  o f  the  D i rec to rs  (and the i r
relationships, if any) are set out on pages 59 to
62 of this annual report, which demonstrates a
diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications. There is no relationship between the
Chairman and the Managing Director. During the
year ended 31 March 2007, the Board at all times

1.2

59
62
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met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors. One of the independent
non-executive directors, Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter
possesses  the  appropr ia te  pro fess iona l
qualifications and accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises
the following Directors:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)
Dr. Lam Chat Yu
Mr. Shen Tai Hing

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman)
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson
Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Pak Joe
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter
Dr. Sun Tai Lun

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed
in all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time
to time.

Coming from diverse business and professional
backgrounds, the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors bring a
wealth of expertise and experiences to the Board,
which contributes to the success of the Group.
Through active participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving
potential conflict of interests and serving on Board
commi t t ees ,  a l l  o f  t hem make  va r i ous
contributions to the effective direction of the
Company.
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All independent non-executive Directors are free
from any business or other relationships with the
Company. The Company has received written
annual confirmation of independence from each
independen t  non-execu t i ve  D i rec to r  i n
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has assessed their independence
and concluded that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent within the meaning of
the Listing Rules.

1.3 Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. The non-executive Directors
and the independent non-executive Directors of
the Company are not appointed for a specific
term. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of
the Company amended on 2 August 2005, at each
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third
of the Directors, including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive
Directors shall retire from office by rotation, and
every Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. As such, the
Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the corporate
governance practices of the Company are no less
exacting than those in the CG Code.

The Company does not have a nomination
committee. The Board as a whole is responsible
for reviewing the Board composition, developing
and formulating the relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors and
assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

3.13

1.3

A.4.1
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Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board
wil l  identify suitable individuals by making
reference to cr i ter ia  inc luding the sk i l ls ,
experience, professional knowledge, personal
integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other
relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
New Directors are sought mainly through referrals
or internal promotion.

The Company’s circular dated 16 July 2007
contains detailed information of the Directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

1.4 Board Proceedings

The Board held five meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2007 and the pr inc ipa l
businesses transacted include:—

• Assessing business performance and
comparing performance with plans and
budgets;

• Approving interim and final results and
reports;

• Approving business acquisition and property
transactions;

• Determining payment of dividend;

• Adopting the terms of reference of the two
board committees for handling general
business and acquis i t ion/disposal of
property respectively; and

• Considering the continuing connected
transactions with HKR International Limited
(“HKRI”) and its subsidiaries for the three
years ending 31 March 2010 (“Continuing
Connected Transactions”) and authorising
the General Business Committee to deal
with all matters in connection therewith.

1.4

•

•

•
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The individual attendance record of each Director
at the meetings of the Board, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2007 is set out below:

Attendance / Number of Meetings

Remuneration Audit
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson
(Chairman) * * 4/5 1/2 N/A

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
(Managing Director) 5/5 2/2 2/2

Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager) 5/5 2/2 2/2
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson * * 4/5 N/A N/A
Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin * * 2/5 N/A N/A
Mr. Chan Pak Joe # # 5/5 2/2 2/2
Dr. Lam Chat Yu 3/5 N/A N/A
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter # # 5/5 2/2 2/2
Mr. Shen Tai Hing 3/5 N/A N/A
Dr. Sun Tai Lun # # 4/5 2/2 2/2

* Non-executive Director
# Independent Non-executive Director

Annual meeting schedules are normally made
available to the Directors in advance. Notices of
regular Board meetings are given to all the
Directors at least 14 days before the meetings.
For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all the Directors
at least 3 days before each Board meeting or
committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary. The Directors
receive a regular supply of information about the
business activities, financial highlights and operations
review so that they are well informed prior to
participation in Board meetings.

*
#
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The Financial Controller attended all regular Board
meetings and when necessary, other Board and
committee meetings to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters,
statutory compliance, corporate governance and
other major aspects of the Company.

According to current Board pract ice, any
transaction with a material amount wil l  be
considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles
of Association also contain provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have
a material interest.

1.5 Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the guideline for
secur i t ies t ransact ions by Di rectors and
employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the
Company.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2007. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the employees
was noted by the Company.

1.5



HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2006 / 2007

Page 46

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

2. Chairman and Managing Director

The positions of the Chairman and Managing Director
are held by Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Wong
Sue Toa, Stewart respectively. Code Provision A.2.1 of
the  CG Code s t ipu la tes  that  the  d iv is ion  o f
responsibilities between the Chairman and Managing
Director should be set out in writing. Although the
respective responsibi l i t ies of the Chairman and
Managing Director are not set out in writing, power and
authority are not concentrated in one individual and all
major decisions are made in consultation with members
of the Board and appropriate Board committees, as well
as senior management. The Board is considering to set
out in writing the roles and duties of the Chairman and
the Managing Director in due course.

The Chairman provides leadership for the effective
functioning of the Board in the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. With the support of the
Managing Director and senior management, the
Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing
on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Managing Director focuses on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved by the
Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day
management and operations. The Managing Director
is also responsible for formulating the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and
processes for the Board’s approval.

3. Remuneration Committee

The Company set up the Remuneration Committee in
December 2004 which replaced the Bonus Committee
established in December 2001. Membership of the
Remuneration Committee is as follows:—

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson
(Remuneration Committee Chairman)

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
Mr. Chan Pak Joe
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter
Dr. Sun Tai Lun

2.

A.2.1

3.
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The primary responsibil it ies of the Remuneration
Committee include formulating remuneration policy and
practices and determining the remuneration packages
of the executive Directors and the senior management
and  pe r fo rmance-based  remune ra t i on .  The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
ensuring that no Director or any of his associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) will participate in deciding
his own remuneration. The committee shall consult the
Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company
about its recommendations on remuneration policy and
remuneration packages.

In determining the remuneration, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed background information such as
key economic indicators, market / sector trend,
headcount and staff costs.

The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year
ended 31 March 2007 and performed the following
works:—

• Rev iewing and determin ing the spec i f ic
percentage of salary increment for the executive
Directors and senior management and the general
percentage of  sa lary increment for other
employees of the Group for the year commencing
1 April 2007; and

• Approving the maximum bonus pool and the
actual bonus amount to be distributed to the
executive Directors, senior management and other
employees of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2006.

The attendance record of individual committee members
is set out on page 44 of this annual report.

•

•
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4. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company has been
established since December 2001. Membership of the
Audit Committee is as follows:—

Mr. Chan Pak Joe
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter
Dr. Sun Tai Lun (Audit Committee Chairman)

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a
partner or former partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

• To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised
by the qualified accountant or external auditors
before submission to the Board;

• To make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors, to approve their remuneration
and terms of engagement and to review and
monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity;

• To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and r isk management system and
associated procedures; and

• To review the Group’s operating, financial and
accounting policies and practices.

4.

•

•

•

•
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
and the major works performed are as follows:—

• Reviewing and recommending for the Board’s
approval the financial results and reports for the
year ended 31 March 2006 and for the six months
ended 30 September 2006;

• Reviewing the revised 2006 accounting standards;

• Reviewing the continuing connected transactions
of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2006;

• Recommending to  the Board o f  the  re-
appointment of external auditors for the year
ended 31 March 2007; and

• Reviewing certain aspects of the internal control
system of the Group.

The attendance record of individual committee members
is set out on page 44 of this annual report.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
March 2007 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

5. Other Board Committees

In addition to delegating specific responsibilities to the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee, the
Board also established two board committees in April
2002 to handle the Company’s general business and
acquisition/disposal of property within a designated
threshold respectively, namely the General Business
Committee and the Property Acquisition/Disposal
Committee. Currently, the two committees comprise all

•

•

•

•

•

44
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the four executive Directors of the Company. During
the year ended 31 March 2007, the two committees
dealt with the following matters by way of written
resolutions:—

• Approving disposal of property;

• Approving transfers of shares in the capital of the
Company; and

• Approving the Construction and Renovation
Services Framework Agreement entered into
between HKRI and the Company to govern the
outl ine terms of the Continuing Connected
Transactions.

Code Provisions D.2.1 and D.2.2 require (i) the board
committees to prescribe sufficiently clear terms of
reference; and (ii) the terms of reference of the board
committees to report back to the Board on their
decisions or recommendations. The written terms of
reference for these two Board committees have been
drawn up and approved at the Board meeting held on
13 September 2006. Code Provisions D.2.1 and D.2.2
have been fully complied with thereafter.

6. Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the
f inancial statements. In preparing the f inancial
statements, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
have been adopted, appropriate accounting policies
have been applied, and reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates have been made.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors
on the financial statements of the Company are set out
in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 76 to
77 of this annual report.

•

•

•

D.2.1 D.2.2 (i)
(ii)

D.2.1 D.2.2

6.

76 77
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The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 31 March 2007 amounted
to HK$900,000 and HK$524,000 respectively. The non-
audit service assignments include the following:—

Nature of service Fees paid

(HK$)

(1) Reviewing the statement of indebtedness and cash flow
forecast of the Group as at 31 October 2006 and for the
period ending 30 November 2007 respectively

190,000
(2) Reviewing the financial results and report for the six months

ended 30 September 2006
200,000

(3) Reviewing certain aspects of the Group’s internal control system
100,000

(4) Others
34,000

HK$ 524,000

7. Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
internal control system to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to safeguard assets, to prevent and detect
fraud and error, and to ensure the quality and timely
preparation of internal and external reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance
structure with clear l ines of responsibi l i ty and
appropriate delegation of responsibility and authority
to the senior management, who are accountable for
the conduct and performance of the respective business
divisions under their supervision.

The Chairman, Managing Director and General Manager
review monthly management reports on the financial
results, statistics and project progress of each business.
Monthly management meetings are held to review
business performance against budgets, forecasts and
risk management strategies. Any major variances are
highlighted for investigation and control purposes.

900,000
524,000

7.

,
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A centralised cash management system is maintained
to oversee the Group’s investment and borrowing
activit ies. There are establ ished guidel ines and
procedures for the approval and control of expenditures.
The aim is to keep the expenditure level in line with the
annual budget and within the cost budget of an
approved project. Expenditures are subject to overall
budget control with approval levels set by reference to
the level of responsibility of each manager and officer.
Depending on the nature and value, procurement of
certain goods and services are required to go through
the tendering process. No individual in the Group,
irrespective of their rank and position, are allowed to
dominate the ent i re expenditure process from
commitment to payment.

During the year under review, the Board has through
the Audit Committee conducted a review of the
effectiveness of certain aspects of the Group’s internal
control system. The result has been reported to the
Audit Committee. There were no significant weaknesses
and areas for improvement have been identified and
appropriate measures taken.

8. Shareholder Rights and Investor Relations

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for
demanding a poll on resolutions at shareholders’
meetings are contained in the Company’s Articles of
Association. Details of such rights to demand a poll and
the poll procedures are included in all circulars to
shareholders which will call for a general meeting and
will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be published on the day of shareholders’
meetings by posting on the websites of the Company
and of the Stock Exchange.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum
for exchange of views between the shareholders and
the Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as
chairmen of the Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available to answer
questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

8.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications
and relationships with its investors. Enquiries from
investors are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at www.hanison.com, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial
information and other information are posted.

www.hanison.com
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The Directors present their  report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2007.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities are set out in notes 42 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page
78.

An interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per share amounting to
HK$6,649,000 were paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK2.5 cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2007
amounting to HK$11,081,000 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the registers of members on 17 August
2007. The proposed dividend will be paid on 10 September
2007 following approval at the annual general meeting.

Investment Properties

Details of the movements during the year in the investment
properties of the Group are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

42 17

78

1.5 6,649,000

2.5

11,081,000

14

15
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Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distr ibution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2007 comprised the aggregate
of share premium, dividend reserve and retained profits of
HK$287,333,000 (2006: HK$300,629,000).

Under the articles of association of the Company, dividends
may be declared and paid out of the profits of the Company,
realised or unrealised, or from any reserves set aside from
profits which the directors of the Company determine is no
longer needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution,
dividends may also be declared and paid out of share
premium account subject to a solvency test as set out in
section 34 of the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Share Option Scheme

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was adopted on 3 January 2002 and became effective on 9
January 2002. Particulars of the Scheme as required under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) are set out below:

Summary of the Scheme

(a) Purpose of the Scheme

To provide the participants who have been granted
options under the Scheme to subscribe for ordinary
shares in the Company (“Shares”) with the opportunity
to acquire proprietary interest in the Company and to
encourage them to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

(b) Participants of the Scheme

All directors (including independent non-executive
directors), full-time employees and consultants of the
Company, its subsidiaries, and/or its associated
companies are eligible to participate in the Scheme.

287,333,000
300,629,000

(a)

(b)
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(c) Maximum number of Shares available for issuance

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the Scheme. A total of 28,367,108 Shares
is available for issue under the Scheme which represents
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of approval of the Scheme and approximately
6.4% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this report.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

(a) The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant (including both exercised and
unexercised options) under the Scheme or any
other share option schemes adopted by the
Company in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue unless otherwise
approved by shareholders of the Company.

(b) Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in rule 1.01 of the Listing
Rules), would result in the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted to such person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of
the grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
Shares in issue; and

(c)

1 0 %
28,367,108

10%
6.4%

30%

(d)

(a)

1%

(b)

1.01

(i) 0.1%
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(ii) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares on date of grant
in excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior
approval of the shareholders of the Company who
are not connected persons of the Company as
defined in the Listing Rules.

(e) Period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an option is
granted or such shorter period as the Board of Directors
or the relevant committee thereof may specify.

(f) Minimum period, if any, for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board of Directors
or the relevant committee thereof must specify the
minimum period(s) and/or achievement of performance
targets, if any, for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised.

Options may be exercised at any time after the minimum
periods of time held and/or achievement of performance
targets, if any, specified in the terms of grant at the
time of grant.

(g) Amount payable upon acceptance of the option
and the period within which the payment must be
made

HK$1 shall be paid within 14 days from the offer date
of the option.

(h) Basis of determining exercise price of the option

The exercise price of the option shall be no less than
the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a
business day;

(ii) 5,000,000

(e)

(f)

(g)

1

(h)

(i)
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(ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five Stock Exchange business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares on the date of
grant.

(i) Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 3
January 2012 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

No option has been granted by the Company since the
adoption of the Scheme.

Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or
Similar Rights

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights as
at 31 March 2007 and there has been no issue or exercise of
any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
during the year.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Chairman and non-executive director:

Cha Mou Sing, Payson

Executive directors:

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)
Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)
Shen Tai Hing
Lam Chat Yu

Non-executive directors:

Cha Mou Daid, Johnson
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin

(ii)

(iii)

(i)
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Independent non-executive directors:

Sun Tai Lun
Chan Pak Joe
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, Mr. Chan Pak
Joe, Dr. Lam Chat Yu and Mr. Shen Tai Hing shall retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. All
remaining directors continue in office.

The term of office of each independent non-executive director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, aged 64, is the chairman and
a non-executive Director of the Company. He joined the Group
in 1989 and has over 41 years of experience in property
development. He is the chairman of Mingly Corporation and
HKR International Limited (“HKRI”) (a controlling shareholder
of the Company), an independent non-executive director of
New World Development Company Limited (“NWDCL”), Eagle
Asset Management (CP) Limited (the Manager of Champion
Real Estate Investment Trust (“CREIT”)) and Hongkong
International Theme Parks Limited, and a director of a number
of public and private companies in Hong Kong and overseas.
HKRI, NWDCL and CREIT are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Cha holds a honorary doctorate degree of Social Science
from City University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Polit ical

116
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Consultative Conference and a Justice of the Peace. He is a
brother of Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and an uncle of Mr.
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, both of whom are the non-
executive Directors and the deemed substantial shareholders
of the Company under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”). Mr. Cha is also a director of CCM Trust
(Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”), a controlling shareholder of
the Company.

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart, aged 61, is the managing
director of the Company and joined the Group in 1989. Before
he joined the Group, he was a director for several listed
companies and was also a director of HKRI unti l his
resignation in December 2001. Mr. Wong is also a director of
all the subsidiaries of the Group. He has extensive experience
in the construction and real estate fields. He holds a bachelor
degree in science from San Diego State University and a
master degree of science in civil engineering from Carnegie-
Mellon University in the United States of America.

Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, aged 55, was appointed as a
non-executive Director in November 2001. He is a director of
HKRI and non-executive director of a number of public and
private companies in Hong Kong and China including
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited and China International
Capital Corporation. He is a brother of Mr. Cha Mou Sing,
Payson and an uncle of Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin.

Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, aged 33, is a non-executive
Director and joined the Group in November 2001. He obtained
his experience in hotel and commercial  real estate
development as a business development executive with
Mandarin Oriental Hotel Group from 1995 to 1999. He holds
a bachelors degree in international politics and economics
from Middlebury College and a masters degree in business
administration from the Stanford Graduate School of Business
in the United States of America. Mr. Cha is a nephew of Mr.
Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson.

XV
CCM Trust (Cayman)

Limited CCM Trust

Carnegie-Mel lon
University

(
)

Middlebury College
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Mr. Chan Pak Joe, aged 54, was appointed an independent
non-executive Director in November 2001. He has been an
executive director of The Luk Hoi Tong Company Limited for
over 25 years. Mr. Chan is the founder of the “Li Zhi Bursary”
of Tsinghua University in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”). He is also the vice-chairman of “Love Relay Grant-
in-Aid” of Fudan University in the PRC since September 2005.
His community service includes having served YMCA as a
director. Prior to his current service to the Hong Kong Housing
Society (an independent and non-government organisation)
as member of the Remuneration Committee, he had also
served the Audit Committee.

Dr. Lam Chat Yu, aged 55, is an executive Director. He joined
the Group in November 2001 and has more than 20 years of
investment experience in the technology sector, including 15
years in Silicon Valley, California, the United States of America
and over 10 years in Asia. Dr. Lam is also an executive director
of Mingly Corporation and a director of Shanghai AJ
Corporation, a company whose “A” shares are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Dr. Lam earned his doctorate in
management from The Sloan School, Massachusetts Institute
of Technology. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. Lam was a vice
president at C.M. Capital Corporation in the United States of
America, where he specialised in software venture companies
and listed technology companies in the United States of
America.

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter, aged 48, was appointed an
independent non-executive Director in September 2004. Dr.
Lau is an Associate Professor of the Department of
Accountancy and Law of the Hong Kong Baptist University.
He holds a bachelor degree in commerce from Saint Mary’s
University in Canada, a master degree in business
administration from Dalhousie University in Canada and a
doctorate degree of philosophy in accounting from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a member of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario in Canada (CA),
a member of The Certified Management Accountants Society
of British Columbia and Yukon in Canada (CMA), a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (FCPA), and an associate member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong (ATIHK). He is the BBA
Program Director of the Hong Kong Baptist University and
was president (1992-1993) of the City Lions Club of Hong
Kong.

(
)

( A
)

The Sloan School
C.M. Capital Corporation

Saint Mary's
University Dalhousie University

 The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario The Certified
Management Accountants Society of British
Columbia and Yukon

(1992-1993)
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Mr. Shen Tai Hing, aged 65, was appointed an executive
Director in November 2001. He has been a director of HKRI
since 1994 until his resignation in December 2001. Mr. Shen
is also a director of two subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Shen
obtained his master degree from the University of Pittsburgh
in the United States of America.

Dr. Sun Tai Lun, aged 56, was appointed an independent
non-executive Director in November 2001. He is the chairman
and managing director of China-Hongkong Photo Products
Holdings Limited, and an independent non-executive director
of i-CABLE Communications Limited and Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, and has over 30 years of experience in the
photographic products industry. Dr. Sun holds a bachelor
degree in pharmacy from the University of Oklahoma, the
United States of America, and a doctorate degree of
philosophy in business administration from Southern California
University for Professional Studies, the United States of
America. He is the vice patron of the Community Chest of
Hong Kong since 1999, a council member and the chairman
of community relations committee of the City University of
Hong Kong. Dr. Sun was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star
in 1999, and appointed as The Justice of the Peace in 2002.

Mr. Tai Sai Ho, aged 56, is an executive Director and the
general manager of the Group. Mr. Tai joined the Group in
1989 and has over 32 years of experience in public and private
sectors of the building and civil engineering industries in Hong
Kong. He is also a director of all the subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Tai holds a master degree in business administration from
Asia International Open University in Macau, a master degree
in construction management from University of New South
Wales in Australia and a bachelor degree in civil engineering
from National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan. Mr. Tai is a
fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors (FHKIoD) and
the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers (FHKICM).

Southern California University for Professional
Studies
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Senior Management

Mr. Chow Ka Fung, Matthew, aged 38, joined the Group in
1998 and is a director of the property and project
management division as well as estate services division of
the Group. He special ises in property development,
investment ,  market ing ,  management  and pro jec t
management in Hong Kong and the PRC for more than 15
years. He holds a bachelor degree in land management from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Chow is a
Registered Professional Surveyor (General Practice) under the
Surveyor Registration Board (RPS). He is also a member of
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), a
member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (MCIArb) and
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS).

Mr. Chuk Kin Lun, aged 56, joined the Group in 1989. He is
a director of the construction division, building materials
division and interior and renovation division of the Group. He
has over 30 years of experience in planning, estimating,
tendering and quantity surveying in the public and private
sectors of the building and civil engineering industries in Hong
Kong. Mr. Chuk holds a bachelor degree in civil engineering
and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction
Managers (MHKICM).

Mr. Ho Chi Tong, aged 42, is the senior manager (contract)
of the construction division and a director of the building
materials division and interior and renovation division of the
Group. He joined the Group in 1998 and has 20 years of
experience in quantity surveying consultancy and construction
contracting. He holds a professional diploma in quantity
surveying from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is
a Registered Professional Surveyor (QS) under Surveyor
Registration Board (RPS) and a member of The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS) and Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS).

( )
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Mr. Lo Kai Cheong, Casey, aged 56, joined the Group in
1996 and is the company secretary and the financial controller
of the Group. He is also a director of the building materials
division, interior and renovation division and property and
project management division of the Group. He has over 25
years of finance and accounting experience in various
industries. He holds a bachelor of business degree in
accounting and a master degree in business administration
from Edith Cowan University in Australia. Mr. Lo is a member
of CPA Australia (CPA (Aust.)) and a fellowship member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (FCPA)
and Association of International Accountants (FAIA).

Mr. Lun Tim Ho, aged 48, joined the Group in 1990 and is a
director of the construction division and interior and renovation
division of the Group. Mr. Lun has 24 years of experience in
the construction field. He holds an associateship and a higher
diploma in the building technology and management from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of
The Chartered Institute of Building (MCIOB), Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM), Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS) and The Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS).

Mr. Tang Yau Chung, aged 46, joined the Group in 2003
and is a director of the health products division of the Group.
Mr. Tang has 22 years of senior management and marketing
experience in the field of health care products and publications
in Hong Kong. He holds a diploma in marketing from The
Chartered Institute of Marketing, United Kingdom and a
diploma in business administration from Hong Kong Shue
Yan College. He is a member of the Chartered Institute of
Marketing, United Kingdom (MCIM).

Mr. Yuen Cheuk Kong, aged 47, joined the Group in 1989.
He is a director of the construction division, building materials
division and interior and renovation division of the Group. He
has over 20 years of experience in the public and private
sectors of the building and civil engineering industries in Hong
Kong. He holds a diploma in management studies, a post-
experience certificate in building studies and a higher
certificate in structural engineering from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a bachelor degree in Construction
Management and Economics. He is also a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).

Edith Cowan
University 
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2007, the interests of the directors and chief
executive in the shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company

Total % of
Number of ordinary shares number issued

of ordinary share
Personal Corporate Other shares capital

Name Capacity interests interests interests

Cha Mou Sing, Beneficial owner, 459,541 512,616 104,263,263 105,235,420 23.74%
Payson interest of controlled note (a) note (b)

corporation and beneficiary
of discretionary trusts

 (a)  (b)

Cha Mou Daid, Beneficiary of — — 105,783,769 105,783,769 23.87%
Johnson discretionary trusts note (b)

 (b)

Cha Yiu Chung, Beneficiary of — — 104,263,263 104,263,263 23.52%
Benjamin discretionary trusts note (b)

 (b)

Wong Sue Toa, Beneficial owner and 3,718,409 2,823,786 — 6,542,195 1.48%
Stewart interest of controlled note (c)

corporation
 (c)

Tai Sai Ho Beneficial owner 376,875 — — 376,875 0.09%

Shen Tai Hing Beneficial owner 8,202 — — 8,202 0.0019%

XV 352
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Notes:

(a) The shares are held by Accomplished Investments Ltd., in
which the relevant director is deemed to be interested by virtue
of Part XV of the SFO.

(b) These shares are held under certain discretionary trusts, of
which Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson
and Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin are members of the class
of discretionary beneficiaries under certain but not identical
discretionary trusts.

(c) Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart’s corporate interests in the
Company arise from the fact that he owns 50% of the share
capital of Executive Plaza Limited, which holds 2,823,786
shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, none of the
directors and chief executives of the Company or their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or
to the Model Code, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO.

Arrangements  to  Purchase  Shares  or
Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of i ts subsidiar ies a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debt securities (including debentures) of the Company or any
other body corporate and none of the directors, or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any rights to
subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such rights during the year.

(a) XV
 Accomplished

Investments Ltd.

(b)

(c)

2,823,786

XV

XV 352

XV
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year, the interests of directors in the businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group (the “Competing
Business”) as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Name of director Name of Company Nature of interest Competing business

(note 1) (note 2)
 1  2

Cha Mou Sing, Payson HKRI Director of HKRI (a) Property
and a member of the development and
class of discretionary investment
beneficiaries of (b) Property
certain discretionary management,
trusts of which the leasing and
trustees are deemed marketing
substantial shareholders services
of HKRI under Part XV
of the SFO

(a)
(b)

XV

NWDCL Independent non-executive (a) Property
director of NWDCL development and

investment
(b) Property

management,
leasing and
marketing
services

(a)

(b)
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Name of director Name of Company Nature of interest Competing business

(note 1) (note 2)
 1  2

CREIT Independent non-executive (a) Property
director of Eagle Asset investment
Management (CP) Limited, (b) Property
the manager of CREIT management,

leasing and
marketing
services

(a)
(b)

Cha Mou Daid, HKRI Director of HKRI (a) Property
Johnson and a member of the development and

class of discretionary investment
beneficiaries of (b) Property
certain discretionary management,
trusts of which the leasing and
trustees are deemed marketing
substantial shareholders services
of HKRI under Part
XV of the SFO

(a)
(b)

XV

Cha Yiu Chung, HKRI A member of the (a) Property
Benjamin class of discretionary development and

beneficiaries of investment
certain discretionary (b) Property
trusts of which the management,
trustees are deemed leasing and
substantial shareholders marketing
of HKRI under Part XV services
of the SFO

(a)
(b)

XV



2006 / 2007 

Page 69

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Notes:

(1) Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson and
Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin are non-executive directors of
the Company, who are not involved in the daily management
of the Group. Accordingly, the Company is capable of carrying
on its business independently of, and at arms length from the
above mentioned competing business.

(2) Such businesses may be made through subsidiaries, affiliated
companies or by way of other forms of investments.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors is interested
in any business apart from the Group’s businesses, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with businesses of the Group.

Interests of Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2007, in addition to those interests as
disclosed above in respect of the directors, the interests of
the substantial shareholders in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of
the SFO were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company

% of issued
Number of share capital

Name Capacity ordinary shares

Great Wisdom Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 217,185,676 49.0%
(“Great Wisdom”) (note 1)  1

HKRI (note 1) Beneficial owner and 217,185,957 49.0%
 1 interest of controlled

corporation

CCM Trust (note 2)  2 Trustee and 309,462,565 69.82%
interests of controlled
corporations

(1)

(2)

XV 336
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Notes:

(1) Great Wisdom is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HKRI and
therefore HKRI is deemed to be interested in the 217,185,676
shares held by Great Wisdom in accordance with the SFO.
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson,
both of whom are directors of the Company, are also directors
of HKRI.

(2) These share interests comprise 78,134,996 shares directly
held by CCM Trust, 217,185,957 shares indirectly held through
HKRI and 14,141,612 shares indirectly held through CDW
Holdings Limited. As CCM Trust controls more than one-third
of the share capital of each of HKRI (held as to approximately
41.01% by CCM Trust) and CDW Holdings Limited (held as to
approximately 52.24% by CCM Trust), it is deemed to be
interested in the respective share interests of these companies.
CCM Trust is holding these shares as the trustee of a
discretionary trust of which members of the Cha Family
(comprising, inter alia, Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, Mr. Cha
Mou Daid, Johnson and Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin, all being
the directors of the Company) are among the discretionary
objects. Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson is also a director of CCM
Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, the Company
has not been notified by any persons (other than directors
and chief executive of the Company) who had any interests
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts and Continuing
Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into certain transactions
and agreements with HKRI, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, and its associates as defined in the Listing Rules
(“Continuing Connected Transactions”) as follows:

(a) Construction transactions

The transactions were entered into between the Group
and HKRI and its associates in relat ion to the
construction of various buildings and structures in Hong
Kong. The total construction income recognised by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2007 amounted
to HK$70,108,000.

(1) Great Wisdom 

Great Wisdom 217,185,676

(2) CCM Trus t
78,134,996 217,185,957

14,141,612
CDW Holdings Limited CCM
Trust (CCM Trust 41.01%
) CDW Holdings Limited(CCM Trust
52.24% )

 CCM Trust

CCM Trust

XV 336

(a)

70,108,000
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(b) Renovation transactions

The Group has entered into agreements with HKRI and
its associates for the renovation, maintenance and
modification of certain of its developments. The total
interior and renovation income recognised in respect
of the above on-going contracts during the year ended
31 March 2007 amounted to HK$152,000.

As the above transactions will be conducted on an ongoing
basis, it is considered that strict compliance with the relevant
requirements relating to such Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Listing Rules (“Requirements”) would
be impractical. On application by the Company, the Company
has been granted conditional waivers from strict compliance
with the Requirements in respect of the aforesaid transactions.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange, the Board of Directors engaged the auditor of the
Company to perform certain agreed upon procedures in
respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions of the
Group. The auditor has reported its factual findings on these
procedures to the Board of Directors of the Company. The
independent non-executive directors have reviewed the
Continuing Connected Transactions and report of the auditor
and have confirmed that the transactions have been entered
into:—

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(ii) on normal commercial terms to independent third
parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

(b)

152,000

14A.38

i ;

ii

iii
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The auditor has confirmed to the directors of the Company
that the Continuing Connected Transactions:—

(a) have received the approval of the Board of Directors of
the Company;

(b) have been entered into in accordance with the terms of
the relevant agreement governing such transactions;

(c) have not exceeded the relevant cap amount for the
financial year ended 31 March 2007 as set out in the
waiver letter issued by the Stock Exchange; and

(d) have been entered into in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company with reference to similar
transactions with independent third parties.

On 30 January 2007, HKRI and the Company entered into
the Construction and Renovation Services Framework
Agreement (“Agreement”) to govern the outline terms upon
which HKRI and its subsidiaries and members of the Group
propose to engage in the construction transactions and
renovation transactions during the three years ending 31
March 2010. Pursuant to the Agreement,

In respect of each of the Continuing Connected Transactions,
the aggregate amount of Continuing Connected Transactions
within each such category for the year ended 31 March 2007
of the Group did not exceed the relevant cap amounts (the
“Cap Amounts”) stated below:

Cap Amounts for the
year ended 31 March 2007

Type of transactions

HK$

Construction (a) 800,000,000
(a)

Renovation (b) 10,000,000
(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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(i) the total value of the construction transactions to be
entered into between the Group on the one hand and
HKRI and its subsidiaries on the other hand for each of
the three years ending 31 March 2010 shall not exceed
HK$450 million;

(ii) the total value of the renovation transactions to be
entered into between the Group on the one hand and
HKRI and its subsidiaries on the other hand for each of
the three years ending 31 March 2010 shall not exceed
HK$20 million.

Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 61% of the turnover of the Group and
the largest customer accounted for about 31% of the turnover
of the Group. A subsidiary of HKRI, which is the fourth largest
customer, accounted for about 6% of the total turnover. Save
as disclosed above, none of the directors, their respective
associates, or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of
the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) has any interest in any of the five largest customers
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2007.

The five largest suppliers of the Group in aggregate accounted
for less than 30% of the total purchases of the Group for the
year.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in making
mandatory contributions for its staff. Details of charges relating
to the retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements.

(i)

450,000,000

(ii)

20,000,000

61% 31%

6%

5%

 

30%

39
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Group’s
attributable

Combined interest
balance sheet

HK$’000 HK$’000

Current assets 322,388 161,194
Current liabilities 214,081 107,041
Non-current liabilities 103,923 51,961

Net assets 4,384 2,192

Share capital — —
Reserves 4,384 2,192

Capital and reserves 4,384 2,192

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of the Listing
Rules

As at 31 March 2007, the Group had given/committed
f inanc ia l  ass is tance and guarantees amounted to
approximately HK$163,738,000 in aggregate to certain
affiliated companies. The combined balance sheet of the
affiliated companies as at 31 March 2007 required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules is set out
below:

25%

13.22

163,738,000 13.22
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Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to HK$61,800.

Post Balance Sheet Event

Details of the post balance sheet event are set out in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditor

A resolution will be proposed at the annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
Managing Director

26 June 2007

61,800

41
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 78 to 142, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 March 2007, and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibi l i ty includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibi l i ty is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Hanison Construction Holdings Limited

Han ison Const ruct ion
Holdings Limited

78 142
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
March 2007 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 June 2007
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006

NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 5 1,178,891 876,564
Cost of sales (1,076,721) (740,609)

Gross profit 102,170 135,955
Other income 7 9,609 931
Marketing and distribution costs (10,895) (13,955)
Administrative expenses (74,590) (68,328)
Finance costs 8 (4,693) (3,142)
Share of losses of associates (124) (153)
Share of profits of jointly

controlled entities 1,356 822
Gain on change in fair value

of investment properties 19,259 44,967
Gain on change in fair value

of investments held for trading 83 27
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 34 43,470 —
Gain on disposal of associates 16 27,000 —

Profit before taxation 9 112,645 97,124
Taxation 11 (7,077) (15,167)

Profit for the year 105,568 81,957

Dividends paid 12 13,298 9,751

Earnings per share — basic   
(HK cents) 13 23.8 18.5
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
At 31 March 2007

2007 2006

NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current assets
Investment properties 14 232,280 295,090
Property, plant and equipment 15 61,175 44,648
Interests in associates 16 — 9,769
Interests in jointly controlled entities 17 18,243 26,887
Goodwill 540 540
Deposits for acquisition of

investment properties 1,821 1,010
Deposits for acquisition of

property, plant and equipment 5,052 3,473
Amount due from a jointly

controlled entity — 40,695

319,111 422,112

Current assets
Properties under development 18 251,640 210,466
Properties held for sale — 2,570
Inventories 19 37,471 33,572
Amounts receivable on

contract work 20 187,735 88,697
Progress payments receivable 21 61,643 33,780
Retention money receivable 22 96,315 96,379
Debtors, deposits

and prepayments 23 47,161 72,521
Amounts due from associates 24 — 534
Amount due from a jointly

controlled entity 25 43,750 50,000
Investments held for trading 26 300 217
Taxation recoverable 4,472 1,442
Bank balances and cash 27 258,457 69,838

988,944 660,016
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2007 2006

NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000

Current liabilities
Amounts payable on contract work 20 105,212 121,892
Creditors and accrued charges 28 292,531 211,613
Taxation payable 489 1,133
Bank loans —  

amounts due within one year 29 185,563 82,200

583,795 416,838

Net current assets 405,149 243,178

Total assets less current liabilities 724,260 665,290

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans —  

amounts due after one year 29 61,500 88,700
Deferred taxation 30 15,119 21,219

76,619 109,919

647,641 555,371

Capital and reserves
Share capital 31 44,324 44,324
Reserves 603,317 511,047

647,641 555,371

The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 142
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 26 June 2007 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Sue Toa Stewart
DIRECTOR

78 142

Tai Sai Ho
DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 March 2007

Share Contributed Special Goodwill Dividend Retained
capital surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(note 32) (note 32)
 32)  32)

At 1 April 2005 35,459 26,942 21,941 (78 ) 5,319 393,582 483,165
Profit for the year and

total recognised income — — — — — 81,957 81,957
Bonus shares issued 8,865 (8,865 ) — — — — —
Final dividend paid in respect of

the year ended 31 March 2005 — — — — (5,319 ) — (5,319 )
Interim dividend paid in respect of

the year ended 31 March 2006 — — — — — (4,432 ) (4,432 )
Proposed final dividend in respect of

the year ended 31 March 2006 — — — — 6,649 (6,649 ) —

At 31 March 2006 44,324 18,077 21,941 (78 ) 6,649 464,458 555,371
Profit for the year and

total recognised income — — — — — 105,568 105,568
Final dividend paid in respect of

the year ended 31 March 2006 — — — — (6,649 ) — (6,649 )
Interim dividend paid in respect of

the year ended 31 March 2007 — — — — — (6,649 ) (6,649 )
Proposed final dividend in respect of

the year ended 31 March 2007 — — — — 11,081 (11,081 ) —

At 31 March 2007 44,324 18,077 21,941 (78 ) 11,081 552,296 647,641
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 112,645 97,124
Adjustments for:

Share of losses of associates 124 153
Share of profits of jointly

controlled entities (1,356) (822 )
Dividend income (4) (4 )
Interest income (1,017) (191 )
Interest expense 4,693 3,142
Depreciation 4,578 4,039
Gain on change in fair value

of investment properties (19,259) (44,967 )
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (43,470) —
Gain on disposal of associates (27,000) —
Gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (7,196) (765 )
Gain on change in fair value of

investments held for trading (83) (27 )
Allowance for prepayment

to a supplier 3,000 —

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital 25,655 57,682

Increase in inventories (3,899) (2,941 )
Development costs for

properties under development (36,684) (6,423 )
Decrease in properties held for sale 2,570 51,932
Increase in amounts

receivable on contract work (99,038) (26,712 )
(Increase) decrease in progress

payments receivable (27,863) 23,791
Decrease in retention

money receivable 64 13,333
Decrease (increase) in debtors,

deposits and prepayments 21,437 (11,172 )
Decrease in amounts payable

on contract work (12,172) (11,607 )
Increase in creditors and

accrued charges 84,854 11,323

Cash (used in) from
operating activities (45,076) 99,206

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (4,893) (7,726 )
Interest paid (9,183) (5,390 )

Net cash (used in)
from operating activities (59,152) 86,090
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For the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006

NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 1,017 191
Dividend received 4 4
Purchase of investment properties (51,956) (35,549 )
Purchase of property,

plant and equipment (30,247) (8,902 )
Increase in amounts due from associates (1,442) (2 )
Decrease (increase) in amounts due

from jointly controlled entities 46,945 (82,130 )
Payment of deposits for acquisition of

investment properties (1,821) (1,010 )
Payment of deposits for acquisition of

property, plant and equipment (5,052) (3,473 )
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment 15,303 789
Acquisition of a property

holding company — (34,288 )
Proceeds from disposal of associates 16 38,621 —
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary 34 163,534 —
Capital distribution from

a jointly controlled entity 10,000 —

Net cash from (used in) investing activities 184,906 (164,370 )

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid (13,298) (9,751 )
Repayments of bank loans (277,900) (4,200 )
New bank loans raised 354,063 60,000

Net cash from financing activities 62,865 46,049

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 188,619 (32,231 )

Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year 69,838 102,069

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year, representing
bank balances and cash 258,457 69,838
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2007

1. General

The Company is an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the
Companies Law (2001 Second Revision), Chapter 22
of the Laws of Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information section of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company and
the principal activities of the Group are building
construction, interior and renovation works, supply and
installation of building materials, trading of health
products, property investment and development.

2. Application of New Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, a number of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “new HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), which are either effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 December 2005 or 1
January 2006 or 1 March 2006. The adoption of the
new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results
and financial position for the current or prior accounting
per iods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new
standards, amendment or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of these
standards, amendment or interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.

1.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2007

2. Application of New Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital disclosures1

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments:
Disclosures1

HKFRS 8 Operating segments2

HK(IFRIC) — INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 23

HK(IFRIC) — INT 9 Reassessment of
embedded derivatives4

HK(IFRIC) — INT 10 Interim financial reporting
and impairment5

HK(IFRIC) — INT 11 HKFRS 2: Group and
treasury share
transactions6

HK(IFRIC) — INT 12 Service concession
arrangements7

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2007.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May
2006.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2006.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
November 2006.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
March 2007.

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2008.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
investment properties and certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addit ion, the consolidated f inancial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

2.

1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up
to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses have been eliminated on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 April
2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for
which the agreement date is before 1 April 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the relevant subsidiary at the
date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 April 2001
continues to be held in reserves, and will be charged to
the retained profits at the time when the business to
which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a
cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is related
becomes impaired.

Previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions
after 1 April 2001 is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the cash generating
unit to which the goodwill relates may be impaired.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 April
2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for
which the agreement date is on or after 1 April 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
subsidiary is presented separately in the consolidated
balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at  the fa i r  va lue of  the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue on construction or interior and renovation
contracts is recognised using the percentage of
completion method by reference to the value of work
carried out during the year as determined by quantitative
surveying reports.

Income from properties held for sale is recognised when
the respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the buyers pursuant to the sales agreement
and the collectivity of related receivables is reasonably
assumed.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right
to receive dividends has been established.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Investment properties

On init ial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to in it ia l  recognit ion,
investment properties are measured using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequen t  accumu la t ed  dep rec i a t i on  and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight line method.

An i tem of  proper ty,  p lant  and equ ipment  is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes land cost,
development costs and directly attributable costs
including, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, interests in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net
assets of the associate, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Jo in t  venture  a r rangements  that  invo lve  the
establishment of a separate entity in which venturers
have joint control over the economic activity of the entity
are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, interests in jointly controlled
entities are carried in the consolidated balance sheet
at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled
entities, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled
entity (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a l iabil ity is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, unrealised profits or losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
jointly controlled entity, except to the extent that
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of
losses is recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition, is calculated using the weighted
average method.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Construction or interior and renovation
contracts

Where the outcome of a construction or interior and
renovation contract can be estimated reliably, revenue
and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet
date, as measured by surveys of work performed.
Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included to the extent that they have been
agreed with the customer.

Where the outcome of a construction or interior and
renovation contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period
in which they are incurred.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as an amount receivable on
contract work. For contracts where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
an amount payable on contract work. Amounts received
before the related work is performed are classified as
liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customer are included
in the consolidated balance sheet under progress
payment receivable.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated balance sheet when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
the two categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and loans and receivables. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of each category of financial assets are set out
below.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value comprise investments held
for trading. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, changes in fair values are recognised
in profit or loss in the period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
including progress payments receivable, retention
money receivable, debtors, deposits, amount due from
a jointly controlled entity and bank balances and cash
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses. An
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, subject to a
restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including bank loans and creditors
and accrued charges are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised as
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amount of assets and l iabi l i t ies in the
conso l i da t ed  f i nanc i a l  s t a t emen ts  and  t he
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet l iabil ity method. Deferred tax liabil it ies are
general ly recognised for al l  taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
avai lable against  which deduct ib le temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are
capital ised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

3.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as
an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of
lease classification, leasehold land which title is not
expected to pass to the lessee by the end of the lease
term is classified as an operating lease unless the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, in which case, the entire lease
is classified as a finance lease. To the extent the
allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating lease.

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to the Group’s defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered serv ice  ent i t l i ng  them to  the
contributions.

3.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
year, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transact ions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate
component of equity (the translation reserve). Such
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the foreign operation is disposed
of.

3.
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4. Financial Instruments

(a) Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
retention money receivable, progress payments
receivable, debtors, deposits, amount due from
a jointly controlled entity, bank balances and cash,
creditors and accrued charges and bank loans.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of the counterparties failure to perform
their obligations as at 31 March 2007 in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consol idated balance sheet and f inancia l
guarantee issued by the Group to a jointly
controlled entity for the borrowing of a bank loan
are the amount of contingent liabilities disclosed
in Note 36.

In order  to min imise the credi t  r isk,  the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at
each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

4.

(a)

 36
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4. Financial Instruments (continued)

(a) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the majority of counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk except for the amount due from a jointly
controlled entity, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

Market risk

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to cash
flow interest rate due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on bank balances.
The directors consider the Group’s exposure of
short term bank deposits to interest rate risk is
not significant as interest bearing bank balances
are within short maturity periods.

In addition, the Group has cash flow interest rate
risk on variable-rate bank loans (see note 29). The
Group currently does not have a policy to hedge
the interest rate risk. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate risk should the
need arises.

4.

(a)

29
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4. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Fair values

The fair values of investments held for trading are
determined based on the quoted bid price of the
listed equity securities as stated in daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange.

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding investments held for trading)
are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
l iabil it ies recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

5. Turnover

Turnover represents the aggregate of the value of
contract work carried out, the sales proceeds derived
from supply and installation of building materials,
proceeds from goods and properties sold, revenue from
provision of properties agency and management
services and gross rental income during the year, and
is analysed as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Construction 906,210 558,086
Interior and renovation 107,486 87,337
Building materials 81,198 66,765
Health products 60,082 59,312
Properties investment 17,733 17,308
Properties agency and management 1,402 3,508
Properties development 4,780 84,248

1,178,891 876,564

4.

(b)

5.
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6. Business and Geographical Segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into seven principal operating divisions —
construction, interior and renovation, building materials,
health products, properties investment, properties
agency and management and properties development.
These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports
its primary segment information.

(a) Business segments

Properties
Interior and Building Health Properties agency and Properties

Construction renovation materials products investment management development Eliminations Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

For the year ended
31 March 2007

TURNOVER
External sales 906,210 107,486 81,198 60,082 17,733 1,402 4,780 — 1,178,891
Inter-segment sales 20,445 736 26,363 2,729 — 802 — (51,075) —

Total 926,655 108,222 107,561 62,811 17,733 2,204 4,780 (51,075) 1,178,891

Inter-segment sales are
charged at prevailing
market rates.

RESULTS
Segment result 13,516 2,079 2,992 (730) 31,826 282 738 162 50,865

Finance costs (4,693)
Share of losses of

associates — — — — — — (124) (124)
Share of profits (losses) of

jointly controlled entities 1,371 — — — — — (15) 1,356
Gain on change in fair

value of investments
held for trading 83

Gain on disposal of
a subsidiary 43,470

Gain on disposal of
associates 27,000

Unallocated other income 1,505
Unallocated expenses (6,817)

Profit before taxation 112,645
Taxation (7,077)

Profit for the year 105,568

6.

  

(a)
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6. Business and Geographical Segments
(continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)

Properties
Interior and Building Health Properties agency and Properties

Construction renovation materials products investment management development Eliminations Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

As at 31 March 2007

ASSETS
Segment assets 583,737 21,447 98,513 36,837 236,396 1,582 253,217 1,231,729
Interests in jointly

controlled entities 18,276 — — — — — (33) 18,243
Amount due from

a jointly controlled entity — — — — — — 43,750 43,750
Unallocated corporate

assets 14,333

Consolidated total assets 1,308,055

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 265,893 26,719 28,294 7,681 5,045 279 32,349 366,260
Unallocated corporate

liabilities 294,154

Consolidated total liabilities 660,414

OTHER INFORMATION
Additions of property,

plant and equipment 25,246 — 391 4,623 3,347 113 — 33,720
Additions of investment

properties — — — — 52,966 — — 52,966
Depreciation 1,310 39 259 2,785 92 93 — 4,578
Allowance for prepayment

to a supplier — — — — — — — 3,000

6.

(a)
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6. Business and Geographical Segments
(continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)

Properties
Interior and Building Health Properties agency and Properties

Construction renovation materials products investment management development Eliminations Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

For the year ended
31 March 2006

TURNOVER
External sales 558,086 87,337 66,765 59,312 17,308 3,508 84,248 — 876,564
Inter-segment sales 61 3,731 48,915 2,400 — 1,145 — (56,252) —

Total 558,147 91,068 115,680 61,712 17,308 4,653 84,248 (56,252) 876,564

Inter-segment sales are
charged at prevailing
market rates.

RESULTS
Segment result 10,289 3,079 5,589 962 57,046 1,566 23,448 2,914 104,893

Finance costs (3,142)
Share of losses of

associates — — — — — — (153) — (153)
Share of profits (losses)

of jointly controlled
entities 832 — — — — — (10) — 822

Gain on change in fair
value of investments
held for trading 27

Unallocated other income 783
Unallocated expenses (6,106)

Profit before taxation 97,124
Taxation (15,167)

Profit for the year 81,957

6.

(a)
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6. Business and Geographical Segments
(continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)

Properties
Interior and Building Health Properties agency and Properties

Construction renovation materials products investment management development Eliminations Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

As at 31 March 2006

ASSETS
Segment assets 278,719 13,487 95,053 38,897 297,379 1,917 213,921 939,373
Interests in associates — — — — — — 9,769 9,769
Interests in jointly

controlled entities 26,887 — — — — — — 26,887
Amounts due from

associates — — — — — — 534 534
Amounts due from a

jointly controlled entity — — — — — — 90,695 90,695
Unallocated corporate

assets 14,870

Consolidated total assets 1,082,128

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 263,907 10,237 28,136 8,131 8,083 427 4,390 323,311
Unallocated corporate

liabilities 203,446

Consolidated total liabilities 526,757

OTHER INFORMATION
Additions of property,

plant and equipment 3,698 — 77 4,775 289 63 — 8,902
Additions of investment

properties — — — — 70,327 — — 70,327
Depreciation 1,709 47 394 1,826 — 63 — 4,039

(b) Geographical segments

A l l  t he  Group ’s  s i gn i f i can t  ope ra t i ons ,
geographical market and segment assets during
the two years ended 31 March 2007 were located
in Hong Kong.

6.

(a)

(b)
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7. Other Income

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Other income includes:

Dividend income 4 4
Interest income 1,017 191
Gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 7,196 —

8. Finance Costs

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest on bank borrowings
wholly repayable within five years 9,183 5,390

Less: Amount capitalised (4,490) (2,248)

4,693 3,142

7.

8.
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9. Profit Before Taxation

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit before taxation has been
arrived at after charging
and (crediting):

Directors’ emoluments (note 10(i))  10(i)
— Fees  650 650
— Other emoluments  10,335 8,270

10,985 8,920

Other staff costs 141,402 113,051
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

for other staff (note 39)  39 8,156 6,321

Total staff costs 160,543 128,292

Depreciation 4,578 4,039
Auditor’s remuneration 1,186 824
Operating lease rentals in respect

of rented premises 9,134 7,693
Share of tax of jointly controlled

entities (included in share of profits
of joint controlled entities) 268 177

Allowance for prepayment to a supplier 3,000 —
Gain on disposal of property, plant

and equipment — (765 )
Gross rental income under

operating leases (17,733) (17,308)
Less: Direct operating expenses that

generated rental income
during the year 2,637 2,438

(15,096) (14,870)

Sub-leasing income (543) (414 )
Less: Direct operating expenses that

generated sub-leasing
income during the year 184 179

(359) (235 )

Expenses capitalised in cost
of contract work:

Depreciation 4,508 2,282
Rentals under operating leases

in respect of:
— plant and machinery  11,485 4,544
— others  830 1,040

Note: The Company’s profit for the year amounted to
approximately HK$1,000 (2006: HK$11,601,000).

9.

1,000
11,601,000
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10. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments

(i) Details of directors’ remuneration are as
follows:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
ten (2006: ten) directors were as follows:

Other emoluments

Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefit

and other incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Cha Mou Sing, Payson — — — — —
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart — 2,316 4,000 347 6,663
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson — — — — —
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin — — — — —
Chan Pak Joe 150 — — — 150
Lam Chat Yu 100 — — — 100
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 150 — — — 150
Shen Tai Hing 100 — — — 100
Sun Tai Lun 150 — — — 150
Tai Sai Ho — 1,454 2,000 218 3,672

Total for 2007 650 3,770 6,000 565 10,985

10.

(i)
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Note: The performance related incentive payment is
determined by the performance of the individual
and the Company’s performance and profitability
for the two years ended 31 March 2007.

During the two years ended 31 March 2007, no
director waived any emoluments.

Other emoluments

Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefit

and other incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Cha Mou Sing, Payson — — — — —
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart — 2,254 2,700 338 5,292
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson — — — — —
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin — — — — —
Chan Pak Joe 150 — — — 150
Lam Chat Yu 100 — — — 100
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 150 — — — 150
Shen Tai Hing 100 — — — 100
Sun Tai Lun 150 — — — 150
Tai Sai Ho — 1,416 1,350 212 2,978

Total for 2006 650 3,670 4,050 550 8,920

10. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments

(i) Details of directors’ remuneration are as
follows: (continued)

10.

(i)
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10. Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments
(continued)

(ii) Employees’ emoluments

During the year, the five highest paid individuals
included two directors (2006: two directors),
details of whose emoluments are set out above.
The emoluments of the remaining three (2006:
three) highest paid individuals were as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries and other benefits 2,130 2,072
Performance related

incentive payments 1,850 1,100
Retirement benefit

scheme contributions 280 273

4,260 3,445

10.

(ii)

The emoluments of the aforesaid employees were
within the following bands:

2007 2006

HK$1,000,001 — 1,000,001  
HK$1,500,000 1,500,000 2 3

HK$1,500,001 —  1,500,001  
HK$2,000,000 2,000,000 1 —

3 3

During the year, no emolument was paid by the
Group to the directors or highest paid employees
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.
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11. Taxation

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Hong Kong Profits Tax
Current year 1,671 6,214
Underprovision in prior year — 5

1,671 6,219
Deferred taxation (note 30)  30 5,406 8,948

7,077 15,167

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2006:
17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated income statement
as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit before taxation 112,645 97,124

Tax at the domestic income tax rate 17.5%
of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) 17.5% 19,713 16,996

Tax effect of share of losses
of associates 22 27

Tax effect of share of profits of jointly
controlled entities (237) (144)

Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible in determining
taxable profit 2,034 1,386

Tax effect of income that is not taxable
in determining taxable profit (13,881) (2,342)

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised (793) (771)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 242 10
Tax effect of different tax rates of

subsidiaries operating in other
jurisdictions (23) —

Underprovision in prior year — 5

Taxation for the year 7,077 15,167

11.

17.5% 17.5%
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12. Dividends

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Ordinary shares:
Interim dividend paid —

HK 1.5 cents per share 1.5
(2006: HK 1 cent per share) 1 6,649 4,432

Final dividend paid —
HK 1.5 cents per share 1.5
(2006: HK 1.5 cents per share) 1.5 6,649 5,319

13,298 9,751

The final dividend of HK 2.5 cents (2006: HK 1.5 cents)
per share has been proposed by the directors and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in general
meeting.

13. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the
year  i s  based on  the  p ro f i t  fo r  the  yea r  o f
HK$105,568,000 (2006: HK$81,957,000) and on the
443,236,000 shares for two years ended 31 March
2007.

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in
existence for the two years ended 31 March 2007.
Accordingly, no diluted earnings per share has been
presented.

12.

2.5
1.5

13.

1 0 5 , 5 6 8 , 0 0 0
81,957,000

443,236,000
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14. Investment Properties

HK$’000

FAIR VALUE
At 1 April 2005 180,560
Additions 70,327
Transfer to land and buildings under

property, plant and equipment (764)
Gain on change in fair value 44,967

At 31 March 2006 295,090
Additions 52,966
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) 34 (135,035)
Gain on change in fair value 19,259

At 31 March 2007 232,280

The carrying value of investment properties comprises
properties in Hong Kong under leases as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Long lease 1,310 1,100
Medium-term lease 230,970 293,990

232,280 295,090

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 March 2007 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that date by Jones Lang LaSalle
Limited, an independent property valuer not connected
with the Group. Jones Lang LaSalle Limited have
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.
The valuation, which was carried out in accordance with
the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties published
by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices
for similar properties.

All of the Group’s property interests in land held under
operat ing leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value
model and are classif ied and accounted for as
investment properties.

14.
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment

Furniture
Land and Plant and and Leasehold Motor
buildings equipment fixtures improvements vehicles Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

COST
At 1 April 2005 49,932 22,671 7,557 3,455 10,680 94,295
Additions — 2,850 1,061 4,750 241 8,902
Transfer from investment properties 764 — — — — 764
Transfer to properties under

development (15,745 ) — — — — (15,745 )
Disposals/write-off — (3,735 ) (1,137 ) (29 ) — (4,901 )

At 31 March 2006 34,951 21,786 7,481 8,176 10,921 83,315
Additions 8,034 22,308 515 1,040 1,823 33,720
Disposals/write-off (8,500 ) (448 ) (549 ) (1,174 ) (1,299 ) (11,970 )

At 31 March 2007 34,485 43,646 7,447 8,042 11,445 105,065

DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2005 5,524 19,277 5,320 1,420 7,699 39,240
Provided for the year 1,158 1,477 945 1,700 1,041 6,321
Eliminated on transfer to

properties under development (2,017 ) — — — — (2,017 )
Eliminated on disposals/write-off — (3,735 ) (1,113 ) (29 ) — (4,877 )

At 31 March 2006 4,665 17,019 5,152 3,091 8,740 38,667
Provided for the year 1,003 3,629 918 2,468 1,068 9,086
Eliminated on disposals/write-off (950 ) (199 ) (498 ) (1,018 ) (1,198 ) (3,863 )

At 31 March 2007 4,718 20,449 5,572 4,541 8,610 43,890

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 March 2007 29,767 23,197 1,875 3,501 2,835 61,175

At 31 March 2006 30,286 4,767 2,329 5,085 2,181 44,648

15.
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the
unexpired term of the
relevant lease period
or 20 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
term of  the lease
period or 5 years

Other assets 5 years

The carrying value of land and buildings comprises
properties in Hong Kong under leases as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Long lease 2,413 2,454
Medium-term lease 27,354 27,832

29,767 30,286

16. Interests in Associates

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost of unlisted investments
in associates — 10,000

Share of post-acquisition losses — (231)

— 9,769

15.

16.
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16. Interests in Associates (continued)

All associates of the Group were disposed of during
the year. The effect of the disposal is summarised as
follows:

2007

HK$’000

Net assets disposed of:

Interests in associates 9,645
Amounts due from associates 1,976

11,621
Gain on disposal of associates 27,000

Cash consideration received 38,621

Total cash consideration 45,706
Less: Directly attributable costs (7,085)

Cash consideration received 38,621

16.

17. Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost of unlisted investments in
jointly controlled entities 13,000 23,000

Share of post-acquisition profits 5,243 3,887

18,243 26,887

17.
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17. Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities
(continued)

Details of the Group’s jointly controlled entities as at 31
March 2007 are as follows:

Attributable
Name of jointly Form of Place of interest held by
controlled entity business structure incorporation the Group Principal activities

Hip Hing-Hanison Unincorporate Hong Kong 50% Building construction
Joint Venture for a basement,

- podium and transfer
plate at Tung Chung

Hanison-Hip Hing Unincorporate Hong Kong 50% Building construction for
Joint Venture townhouse development

- at Tung Chung

Hip Hing-Hanison Unincorporate Hong Kong 50% Building construction
Joint Venture for superstructure

- work at Tung Chung

Crown Cosmos Limited liability British Virgin 50% Investment holding in
Investments Limited company Islands Hong Kong

Poly Rising Limited liability Hong Kong 50% Property development
Development Limited company in Hong Kong

17.
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17. Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities
(continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s jointly controlled entities is set out below:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Current assets 329,004 291,458
Current liabilities 188,595 237,684
Non-current liabilities 103,923 —

Total net assets 36,486 53,774

Share of net assets 18,243 26,887

Income 230,916 213,864
Expenses 228,205 212,220

Profit for the year 2,711 1,644

Share of profits of jointly
controlled entities 1,356 822

18. Properties Under Development

At balance sheet date, total borrowing costs capitalised
i n  t he  p rope r t i e s  unde r  deve lopmen t  we re
HK$7,228,000 (2006: HK$2,738,000).

The carrying value of properties under development
comprises properties in Hong Kong under medium-term
lease.

The amount is expected to be recovered more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date.

17.

18.

7,228,000
 2,738,000
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19. Inventories

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Building materials 20,649 18,748
Health products – finished goods 16,822 14,824

37,471 33,572

19.

20. Amounts Receivable (Payable) on Contract
Work

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Contract costs incurred plus
recognised profits less recognised
 losses 5,068,824 3,983,647

Less: progress billings (4,986,301) (4,016,842)

82,523 (33,195)

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Amounts receivable on contract work 187,735 88,697
Amounts payable on contract work (105,212) (121,892)

82,523 (33,195)

20.
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21. Progress Payments Receivable

Progress payments receivable represent the amounts
receivable, after deduction of retention money, for
construction services which usually fall due within 30
days after the work is certified. Retention money is
usually withheld from the amounts receivable for work
certified. 50% of the retention money is normally due
upon completion and the remaining 50% portion is due
upon finalisation of construction accounts.

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Progress payments receivable from:

Subsidiaries of HKR International
Limited (“HKRI”) 14,900 11,369

Third parties 46,743 22,411

61,643 33,780

The aged analysis of progress payments receivable is
as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within 30 days 55,585 32,120
31 — 60 days 4,583 1,660
Over 90 days 1,475 —

61,643 33,780

21.
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22. Retention Money Receivable

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Retention money receivable from
Subsidiaries of HKRI 16,400 42,249
Third parties 79,915 54,130

96,315 96,379

Amount receivable within one year 72,453 57,419
Amount receivable after one year 23,862 38,960

96,315 96,379

23. Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Debtors 21,584 42,070
Other receivables 5,370 3,871
Deposits 8,919 13,336
Prepayments 11,288 13,244

47,161 72,521

The credit period allowed by the Group to its customers
is normally 30 days.

22.

23.
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23. Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments
(continued)

The aged analysis of debtors included in debtors,
deposits and prepayments is as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within 30 days 11,374 33,480
31 — 60 days 2,107 1,925
61 — 90 days 2,522 1,440
Over 90 days 5,581 5,225

21,584 42,070

Included in the above debtors are amounts due from
related parties of trading nature as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Subsidiaries of HKRI 6 —
Property management funds

which are managed by
subsidiaries of HKRI — 13

Jointly controlled entities of the Group — 13

6 26

24. Amounts Due From Associates

The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and fully
repaid during the year.

25. Amount Due From a Jointly Controlled
Entity

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

23.

24.

25.
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26. Investments Held For Trading

Investments held for trading include investment in equity
secur i t ies  l i s ted in  Hong Kong amount ing to
HK$300,000 (2006: HK$217,000).

27. Bank Balances and Cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less at an average interest
rate of 0.62% (2006: 0.20%) per annum.

28. Creditors and Accrued Charges

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Creditors 97,487 64,085
Retention payable 70,657 59,723
Accrued costs and charges 112,906 76,127
Temporary receipts 6,765 5,265
Deposits received 4,716 6,413

292,531 211,613

The aged analysis of creditors included in creditors and
accrued charges is as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within 30 days 90,421 58,962
31 — 60 days 676 832
61 — 90 days 1,125 1,326
Over 90 days 5,265 2,965

97,487 64,085

26.

300,000
217,000

27.

0.62%
0.20%

28.
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28. Creditors and Accrued Charges (continued)

Included in the above creditors are amounts due to
related parties of trading nature as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Subsidiaries of HKRI 94 99

The bank loans are secured by charges over certain
properties of the Group, which are disclosed in
note 35.

28.

29. Bank Loans

The bank loans are repayable as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 185,563 82,200
In the second year 20,700 6,200
In the third to fifth years inclusive

40,800 82,500

247,063 170,900
Less: Amount due within one year (185,563) (82,200)

Amount due after one year 61,500 88,700

Secured 63,500 94,900
Unsecured 183,563 76,000

247,063 170,900

29.

35
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29. Bank Loans (continued)

The Group’s bank borrowings are f loat ing-rate
borrowings which are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The interest is charged at a range from Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) + 0.625% to
HIBOR + 1.000% (2006: from HIBOR + 0.625% to
HIBOR + 1.000%) per annum.

The range of effective interest rates on the Group’s
borrowings is 4.280% to 5.750% (2006: 2.465% to
5.178%) per annum.

30. Deferred Taxation

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
(assets) of the Group and movements thereon during
the current and prior years:

Accelerated
tax Tax

depreciation Properties losses Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 April 2005
1,715 10,556 — 12,271

Charge to consolidated income
statement for the year 1,237 7,711 — 8,948

At 31 March 2006
2,952 18,267 — 21,219

Charge to consolidated income
statement for the year 3,643 3,760 (1,997) 5,406

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34)
34 (1,682) (9,824) — (11,506)

At 31 March 2007
4,913 12,203 (1,997) 15,119

29.

0.625%
1.000%

0.625%
1.000%

4 . 2 8 0 %
5.750% 2.465%
5.178%

30.
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2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Deferred tax assets 1,997 —
Deferred tax liabilities (17,116) (21,219)

(15,119) (21,219)

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$23,125,000 (2006: HK$14,801,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of HK$11,414,000
(2006: nil) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining HK$11,711,000
(2006: HK$14,801,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. All the unrecognised tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

31. Share Capital

30. Deferred Taxation (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated balance sheet
presentation, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the
deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

No. of shares HK$’000

Authorised:
Shares of HK$0.10 each 0.10

Balance as at 1 April 2005,
31 March 2006 and
31 March 2007

800,000,000 80,000

Issued and fully paid:
Shares of HK$0.10 each 0.10

Balance as at 1 April 2005 354,588,856 35,459
Bonus shares issued for the year

ended 31 March 2006 88,647,212 8,865

Balance as at 31 March 2006 and
31 March 2007

443,236,068 44,324

30.

23,125,000 14,801,000

11,414,000

11,711,000
14,801,000

31.
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31. Share Capital (continued)

By an ordinary resolution passed on 2 August 2005,
the issued share capital was increased by way of a
bonus issue by transferring HK$8,865,000 from the
contributed surplus account of the Company in payment
in full at par of 88,647,212 shares of HK$0.10 each on
the basis of one bonus share for every four shares held
on 2 August 2005.

All the bonus shares rank pari passu with the then
existing shares.

32. Reserves

Contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate share capital of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired
by the Company and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued at the time of the group
corporate reorganisation, less the par value of the bonus
shares issued by the Company.

Special reserve of the Group represents the aggregate
of contributions from the then shareholders of the
companies comprising the Group and other subsidiaries
of HKRI before the group corporate reorganisation.

33. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the Company’s existing share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) which was adopted on 3
January 2002 and became effective on 9 January 2002,
all directors (including independent non-executive
directors), full-time employees and consultants of the
Company, its subsidiaries and/or its associates are
eligible to participate in the Scheme.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the participants
who have been granted options under the Scheme to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interest in the
Company and to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for
the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

31.

8,865,000

0.10
88,647,212

32.

33.
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33. Share Option Scheme (continued)

(a) Maximum number of shares available for
issuance

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of approval
of the Scheme. A total of 28,367,108 shares of
the Company is available for issue under the
Scheme which represents 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of approval
of the Scheme and approximately 6.4% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this report.

The overall limit on the number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the shares of the Company in issue from time
to time.

(b) Maximum entitlement of each participant

(1) The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including both
exercised and unexercised options) under
the Scheme or any other share option
schemes adopted by the Company in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue unless otherwise approved
by shareholders of the Company.

33.

(a)

10%
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33. Share Option Scheme (continued)

(b) Maximum entitlement of each participant
(continued)

(2) Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or any
of their respective associates (as defined in
rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules), would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and
to be granted to such person in any 12-
month period up to and including the date
of the grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the shares in issue; and

(ii) having an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the shares on date
of grant in excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior
approval  of  the shareholders of  the
Company who are not connected persons
of the Company as defined in the Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange.

(c) Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an option
is granted or such shorter period as the Board of
Directors or the relevant committee thereof may
specify.

33.

(b)

(2)

1.01

(i) 0.1%

(ii) 5,000,000

,

(c)
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33. Share Option Scheme (continued)

(d) Minimum period, if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be
exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board of
Directors or the relevant committee thereof must
specify the minimum period(s) and/or achievement
of performance targets, if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

Options may be exercised at any time after the
minimum periods of time held and/or achievement
of performance targets, if any, specified in the
terms of grant at the time of grant.

(e) Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire
on 3 January 2012 unless otherwise terminated
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

The exercise price of the option shall be no less than
the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day;

(ii) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five Stock
Exchange business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares of the Company
on the date of grant.

A consideration of HK$1 shall be paid upon the
acceptance of the option.

No option has been granted under the Scheme since
its adoption.

33.

(d)

/

/

(e)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

1
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34. Disposal of a Subsidiary

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group
disposed of a subsidiary, Hanison Eco Services Limited
(“Hanison Eco”), to a property holding company of an
international investment house. Hanison Eco is engaged
in property investment and a gain on disposal of
HK$43,470,000 was recognised.

A summary of the effect of disposal of a subsidiary is
as follows:

2007

HK$’000

Net assets disposed of:

Investment properties 135,035
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 923
Bank balances and cash 122
Creditors and accrued charges (3,936)
Taxation payable (452)
Deferred tax liabilities (11,506)
Shareholder’s loan (64,077)

56,109
Assignment of shareholder’s loan 64,077

120,186
Gain on disposal 43,470

Total consideration 163,656

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration 180,000
Directly attributable costs (16,344)

163,656

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration received 163,656
Cash and cash equivalent disposed of (122)

163,534

The subsidiary disposed of during the year contributed
HK$6,944,000 (2006: HK$8,911,000) to the turnover
and HK$3,407,000 (2006: HK$26,012,000) to the profit
for the year of the Group.

34.

-

43,470,000

6,944,000
8,911,000 3,407,000

26,012,000
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35. Pledge of Assets

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s bank loans were
secured by the Group’s assets as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Investment properties 105,250 207,014
Land and buildings 11,295 11,790

116,545 218,804

36. Contingent Liabilities

At the balance sheet date, the Group had given
guarantees to a bank in respect of performance bonds
and a bank loan granted to the jointly controlled entities
amounting to HK$33,488,000 (2006: HK$33,488,000)
and HK$68,500,000 (2006: nil) respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2004, legal actions in
respect of allegations of copyright infringement and
defamation have been taken against certain subsidiaries
of the Company carrying on health products business.
No further steps have been taken against the Group in
respect of such actions after the court hearing for
directions to appoint experts and exchange witness
statements since 2004. At 31 March 2007, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that in view of the
uncertainty, it is not practicable to assess the financial
effect.

35.

36.

3 3 , 4 8 8 , 0 0 0
33,488,000 68,500,000
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37. Capital Commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following
commitments:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Contracted for but not provided in
consolidated financial statements

Commitments for the acquisition of
investment properties 26,399 9,090

Commitments for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment 11,713 7,750

Authorised but not contracted for

At the balance sheet date, the Group has an obligation
to fund HK$231,500,000 (2006: HK$231,500,000),
representing 23.63% of the anticipated project costs
for the joint development of a site in So Kwun Wat.

38. Operating Lease Commitments

As lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments in respect of rented
premises under non-cancellable operating leases which
fall due as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 7,643 9,383
In the second to fifth year inclusive 4,868 8,478
Over five years 8,120 8,240

20,631 26,101

37.

231,500,000
231,500,000
23.63%

38.
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38. Operating Lease Commitments (continued)

As lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for its office properties, warehouses and
shops. Except for a lease with a remaining term of 42
years which has fixed rentals for the remaining term,
leases are negotiable and rentals are fixed for an average
term of three years.

As lessor

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease
payments in respect of the investment properties:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 13,036 18,315
In the second to fifth year inclusive

6,994 14,941

20,030 33,256

Leases are negotiable for an average term of three
years.

39. Retirement Benefit Schemes

With the implementation of Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme in Hong Kong on 1 December 2000, the Group
has maintained the defined contribution scheme
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance and has obtained an exemption satisfying
the requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (“MPFO”).

To comply with the MPFO, a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) with voluntary contributions
has been established. New employees must join the
MPF Scheme after it commenced on 1 December 2000.

38.

39.
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39. Retirement Benefit Schemes (continued)

The amounts charged to the consolidated income
statement represent contributions payable to the
schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the schemes less forfeitures arising from employees
leaving the Group prior to completion of qualifying
service period. The amount for the year is as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Contributions payable 8,811 6,913
Forfeiture (90) (42)

8,721 6,871

At the balance sheet date, the total amount of forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefit schemes and which are available to
reduce contributions payable in future years are as
follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Balance of forfeited contributions 32 30

39.
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40. Related Party Transactions

During the year, the following related party transactions
took place:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Construction income from subsidiaries
of HKRI (Note) 70,108 187,455

Interior and renovation income
from a company associated
with a substantial shareholder
of the Company — 2,748

Supply and installation of building
materials to jointly controlled entities 3,305 1,554

Interior and renovation income from
subsidiaries of HKRI (Note) and
its associates 152 717

Properties agency fees and manager’s
fee income from a company
associated with a substantial
shareholder of the Company — 2,227

Interior and renovation income from
property management funds which
are managed by subsidiaries
of HKRI (Note) 388 263

Compensation of key management personnel

Details of the remuneration of key management
personnel, which are the directors, during the year were
set out in note 10.

Note: HKRI is a substantial shareholder of the Company.

41. Post Balance Sheet Event

On 15 May 2007, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with independent third parties to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Million Hope
Industries Limited and Million Hope Holding Company
Limited at a consideration of HK$3,385,000. The
completion date was on the same date.

40.

10

41.

3,385,000
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42. Particulars of Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries, all of which
are wholly owned, at 31 March 2007 are as follows:

Issued and
fully paid

Place of share capital (note 1)/
incorporation/ registered capital/

Name of subsidiary operation quota capital Principal activities

1

Amwell Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 Investment holding
/Hong Kong

1

Brilliant Advance Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 Investment holding
/Hong Kong

2

Care & Health Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of health
products

2

Emwell Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Property investment
2

Excel Gaining Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Property investment
1

Famous Era International Hong Kong HK$1 Property investment
Limited

1

Forever Gainer Development Hong Kong HK$2 Property development
Limited

2

42.
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42. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Issued and
fully paid

Place of share capital (note 1)/
incorporation/ registered capital/

Name of subsidiary operation quota capital Principal activities

1

General Target Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Property investment
10,000

Hamfield Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Property holding
2

Hanison Construction Hong Kong Ordinary shares Property construction
Company Limited HK$1,000

Deferred shares
HK$60,000,000
(note 3)

1,000
60,000,000

3

Hanison Contractors Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Property construction
2

Hanison Estate Services Hong Kong HK$2 Provision of property
Limited management services

2

Hanison Foundation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Property construction
1

Hanison Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
1

42.
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42. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Issued and
fully paid

Place of share capital (note 1)/
incorporation/ registered capital/

Name of subsidiary operation quota capital Principal activities

1

Hanison Interior & Hong Kong HK$2 Provision of interior
Renovation Limited and renovation

services
2

Hanison (Macau) Limited Macau MOP25,000 Property construction
25,000

Hanison Project Hong Kong HK$2 Provision of
Management Limited property leasing

and marketing services
and project management

2

Hantex Engineering Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Dormant
1

Healthcorp Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of health
products and
investment holding

2

Health Plus (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$2 Dormant
Limited

2

42.
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42. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Issued and
fully paid

Place of share capital (note 1)/
incorporation/ registered capital/

Name of subsidiary operation quota capital Principal activities

1

Heatex Ceramic Limited Hong Kong HK$400,000 Property development
400,000

Media Group International British Virgin Islands US$2 Investment holding
Limited /Hong Kong

2

Retailcorp Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Sales of health products
2

Rich Color Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 Dormant
/Hong Kong

1

Senior Rich Development Hong Kong HK$10,380 Property investment
Limited

10,380

Sental Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Property development
2

Tai Kee Pipes Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 Trading of building
materials

2,000,000

42.
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Issued and
fully paid

Place of share capital (note 1)/
incorporation/ registered capital/

Name of subsidiary operation quota capital Principal activities

1

Team Forward Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 Investment holding
/Hong Kong

2

Top Rising Development Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
Limited

1

Trigon Building Materials Hong Kong HK$2 Supply and installation
Limited of building materials

2

Trigon Interior Fitting-Out Macau MOP25,000 Building materials,
Works (Macau) Limited renovation and trading

25,000

Triple Sky Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Property investment
1

Wisdom Concept Hong Kong HK$2 Property development
Development Limited

2

( ) The People’s US$600,000 Trading of health
(note 5) 5 Republic of China products

600,000

42. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 42.
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Notes:

(1) All being ordinary shares except otherwise stated.

(2) Other than Media Group International Limited, which is
directly held by the Company, all other companies are
indirectly held by the Company.

(3) The HK$60,000,000 deferred shares are held by a
subsidiary of HKRI. The deferred shares held by the
subsidiary of HKRI are shares whose shareholders are
neither entitled to receive notices, attend, vote at any
general meetings nor to receive any dividend out of
operating profit and have very limited rights on return
of capital of the subsidiary.

(4) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year.

(5) A wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

(1)

(2) M e d i a  G r o u p
International Limited 

(3) 60,000,000

(4)

(5)
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Year ended 31 March

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover 1,178,891 876,564 920,717 652,822 891,981

Profit before taxation 112,645 97,124 110,122 40,261 35,414
Taxation (7,077) (15,167 ) (17,733 ) (6,928 ) (5,194 )

Profit for the year 105,568 81,957 92.389 33,333 30,220

As at 31 March

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets 1,308,055 1,082,128 949,019 747,859 660,159
Total liabilities (660,414) (526,757 ) (465,854 ) (349,512 ) (288,053 )

Shareholders’ funds 647,641 555,371 483,165 398,347 372,106

RESULTS 
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

Total
saleable/gross

floor/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of

Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions property of lease

1. Workshop 5, G/F, Block A, 136,115 Industrial 100% Medium term
Workshop 3, G/F, Block B, lease
Workshop 7, 1/F, Block A,
Workshops 9-13, 2/F, Block A,
Workshop 8, 2/F, Block B,
Workshops 2-3, 6 & portion
of Workshop 1, 4-5, 3/F, Block B,
Workshops 1-5, 4/F, Block B,
Workshops 1-18
& majority portion of
Workshop 23 (including
flat roofs of Workshops 5 & 6),
4/F, Block A,
Whole Floor, 5/F, Blocks A & B,
Whole Floor, 6/F, Block A,
Car Parking Spaces
V31, V36, V42, V49, V50,
V55, C2, L42, L45 & L53
Shatin Industrial Centre
5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit
Shatin, New Territories

1. 136,115 100%

5 7

A 5,
B 3
A 1 7
A 2 9 13,
B 2 8,
B 2 3 6

1 4 5
B 1 5
A 1 18

23 ,
5 6 ,

A B ,
A

V31 V36 V42 V49
V50 V55 C2 L42 L45 L53

A. Investment properties held for rental
purposes

A.
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

Total
saleable/gross

floor/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of

Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions property of lease

2. Ground Floor and 1st Floor 5,041 Industrial 100% Medium term
of Block B, Nos. 23-25 lease
Mei Wan Street
Tsuen Wan
New Territories

2. 5,041 100%
23 25

B

3. 2/F to 4/F 2,937 Industrial 100% Long lease
No. 95 Bedford Road
Tai Kok Tsui
Kowloon

3. 2,937 100%
95

4. Lots Nos. 2052 s.A 118,256 Agricultural 100% Medium term
2052 s.B, 2063 s.A RP lease
2063 s.B RP, 2063 s.C RP
2064, 2062, 2066 RP, 2068
2065 RP, 2053, 2059, 2057
2055, 2056 and 2034
in Demarcation District
No. 76
Ping Che
Fanling
New Territories

4. 118,256 100%
76

2052 s.A,
2052 s.B, 2063 s.A RP
2063 s.B RP, 2063 s.C RP
2064, 2062, 2066 RP, 2068
2065 RP, 2053, 2059, 2057
2055, 2056  2034

A. Investment properties held for rental
purposes (continued)

A.
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A. Investment properties held for rental
purposes (continued)

Total
saleable/gross

floor/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of

Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions property of lease

5. Leasehold interest in the 1,362 Commercial/ 100% Medium term
Head-Lease for the residual Residential lease
term of 30 years commencing
from 1 December 1989 with
an option to renew for a further
term of 30 years of Ground
Floor and 3rd Floor, No. 31
Wing Wo Street, Sheung Wan
Hong Kong

5. 1,362 100%
31

6. Lots Nos. 163s.A, 163s.B, 164 214,106 Agricultural 100% Medium term
165 s.B, 165RP, 166RP, 167RP lease
168, 169, 170 & 171
in Demarcation District No. 128
Deep Bay Road, Yuen Long
New Territories

6. 214,106 100%
128

163s.A, 163s.B, 164
165s.B, 165RP, 166RP, 167RP
168, 169, 170 171

7. Workshop Unit Nos. 4 to 6 (inclusive) on 5,575 Industrial 100% Medium term
2nd Floor and Lorry Carpark Nos. L7 & L8 lease
on Ground Floor,
Kin Wing Industrial Building,
No. 33 Kin Wing Street,
Tuen Mun, New Territories

7. 5,575 100%
33

4 6

L7 L8

A.
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

A. Investment properties held for rental
purposes (continued)

Total
saleable/gross

floor/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of

Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions property of lease

8. Southern Half Portion of Ground Floor 952 Residential 100% Medium term
Nos. 5 & 5A La Salle Road lease
Kowloon
Hong Kong

8. 5 5A 952 100%

A.

B.B. Properties under development

Site Gross floor Expected Attributable
area area completion interest of

(sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Stage of date Nature of the Group
Descriptions completion property

1. 4 College Road and 21 6,125 Not Less then Work in 2008 Residential 100%
Sau Chuk Yuen Road 11,022 but not progress
Kowloon Tong exceed 18,374
Kowloon

1. 6,125 11,022 2008 100%

21 18,374
4

2. 121 Lots in Demarcation 815,886 Not yet Planning No Residential 100%
District No. 129 determined in progress definite
Lau Fau Shan plan
Yuen Long
New Territories

2. 815,886 100%

129
121
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

B. Properties under development (continued)

Site Gross floor Expected Attributable
area area completion interest of

(sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Stage of date Nature of the Group
Descriptions completion property

3. Nos. 1 & 1E 11,590 Not less than Work in 2008 Residential 50%
La Salle Road 20,861 but not progress
Kowloon Tong exceed 34,768
Kowloon

3. 11,590 20,861 2008 50%
1  1E 34,768

4. Lot Nos 412s. B, 44,588 Not yet Planning No Residential 100%
413, 442RP, 443RP, determined in progress definite
445s.A, 445RP, plan
446RP and 447
in Demarcation
District No. 374
So Kwun Wat
Tuen Mun
New Territories

4. 44,588 100%
374

412s.B, 413,
442RP, 443RP, 445s.A,
445RP, 446RP  447

B.



香港沙田源順圍五至七號沙田工業中心B座四樓一室

興勝創建控股有限公司

www.hanison.com

Unit 1, 4/F, Block B, Shatin Industrial Centre,
5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin, Hong Kong

Hanison Construction Holdings Limited


	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Corporate Structure
	Financial Highlights
	Chairman's Statement
	Operations Review
	Financial Review
	Corporate Governance Report
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor's Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Balance Sheet
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial   Statements
	Financial Summary
	Summary of Major Properties
	Back Cover

